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Visit of Lt. General Shantanu Dayal, UYSM, AVSM, SM, DCOAS(CD & S) to BELOP on 17" February 2022. 

From Left to Right Mr. Nitin Arey, AGM(Commercial), BELOP, Mr. Anil Dixit, Sr. DGM(P & S). BELOP, 
Lt. General Shantanu Dayal, UYSM, AVSM, SM, DCOAS(CD & S), Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao, CEO, BELOP, 

and officials from DCOAS(CD & S) and BELOP. 

Visit of the Principal Director of Commercial Audit and his team on 25th February 2022. 

Mr. Santosh Kumar, IA & AS, Principal Director of Commercial Audit (fourth from right), 
Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao, CEO, BELOP (fifth from right). Mr. Anil Dixit, Sr. DGM(P& S). BELOP (first from right), 

Mr. Nitin Arey, AGM(Com mercial), BELOP (sixth from r ight), Mr. P. Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer (firs t from left), 
Mr. Lian Johnson Tunglut, Audit Officer (fourth from left) with other officials from the Office of the 

Principal Director of Commercial Audit and BELOP. 
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TEN YEAR FINANCIAL STATISTICS (� in Millions) 

Particulars 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Total Income 1 578 1 843 1 242 1087 1 31 2  1246 1204 569 595 603 

Profit after tax 58 50 37 24 48 1 1 6  142 30 49 52 

Equity capital 1 83 1 83 1 83 378 592 663 722 839 845 845 

Reserves & Surplus 312 362 398 676 1014  1219  1 398 1 514  1 560 1 598 

Working Capital 272 (1 85) (322) (86) 35 221 1 20 204 338 442 

Capital Employed 347 37 573 745 892 1024 869 871 933 966 

Net Worth 495 545 581 1055 1 597 1 868 21 20 2353 2405 2443 
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER 

Dear Shareholders, 

It gives me immense pleasure to share with you the highl ights of performance of your company during the past year and the 
future outlook for the Company. 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2021 -22 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Your company achieved a turnover of � 4,586 lakhs during the year 2021 -22. During 2021 -22, the company has posted a net 
profit of � 51 6 lakhs. The Networth ofthe Company has increased to � 24,432 lakhs as on 31 .03.2022, registering an increase of 
1 .58% mainly due to increase in profits. 

DIVIDEND 

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of 40% of PATforthe year 2021 -22 which amounts to � 206 Lakhs. 

OTHERACHIEVEMENTS 

MoU Rating 

Your company has been awarded "Very Good" rating for the year 2020-21  in respect of the MoU which BELOP enters with it's 
holding company Bharat Electronics Limited (BEL) for establishing the performance parameters and targets for each year 

Credit Rating 

During the year 2021 -22, ICRA has assigned the following ratings to the company for the year 2021 -22 

(i) Long-term rating of [ICRA]AA+(pronounced ICRAdouble A+) to � 4000 lakhs fund based bank limits. 

(ii) Short-term rating of [ICRA]A 1 + (pronounced ICRA Aone plus) to � 570 lakhs non-fund based bank limits. 

The long term rating of [ICRA]AA+ is with a stable outlook. These ratings indicate the high credit qual ity in the long- and 
short-term. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

The Company's D&E Department, along with relevant experienced Executives from manufacturing Departments, are driving and 
executing the developments towards products, process and upgradation of manufacturing and Test Equipment. 

During the year, the R&D team has carried out the following activities in specific areas as outlined below:-

.:. Improvement in Design of Dewar Assembly for Cooled Thermal Imager applications . 

• :. Design and Development of MCP based Photomultiplier Tube for scientific applications. 

The company is also taking efforts to develop new products by using its competencies and skil l . 

The Company makes continuous efforts to upgrade the existing Products, to provide better product quality and increased 
productivity in the manufacture and supply. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

The XR-5 project is in the final stages of implementation . 

BELOP has initiated action to diversify into related areas and also new areas to improve business opportunities and to have 
variety of products in it's portfolio. The project for manufacture of aviation hoses in accordance with the Offset Contract with MIs 
Rosoboronexport, Russia is under initial stages of implementation . 

Your company has an order book position of � 25.49 Crores as on 30.06.2022. However, the company expects to receive further 
orders and execute them during the year and is expected to achieve a sales of around � 85 Crores for the year 2022-23. 

3 
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CSR INITIATIVES 

BELOP undertakes CSR initiatives/projects as per the Company's Corporate Social Responsibil ity Policy in line with Section 1 35 
and Schedule VI I ofthe CompaniesAct, 201 3 & amendments thereof. During June 2022, BELOP has completed construction of a 
primary school in Vi l lage Chandoli in Khed Taluka as a part of it's CSR initiative and the same would be handed over to the Gram 
Panchayat authorities during July 2022 subsequent to completion of formalities. BELOP would be taking up other CSR projects 
during 2022-23. 

GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

Your company endeavours to uphold the best practices in corporate governance. A report on compliance of the guidelines on 
Corporate Governance as per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises for CPSEs forms part ofthe Board's 
Report. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

I am grateful to the Board of Directors for their support and guidance. I deeply appreciate the support provided by the holding 
company, our customers and our business associates. 

The dedication and commitment of our employees and officers at al l levels continues to be the major strength of our company. We 
shall make continuous efforts to build on these strengths to face future chal lenges and sustain the momentum for profitable 
growth. 

Thank you for the continuous support to BEL Optronic Devices Limited. 

With best Wishes, 

Place: - Bengaluru 
Date: - 26th July 2022 
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sd/-
(Anandi Ramalingam) 

Chairman 
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BOARDS' REPORT 

To the Members, 

I have great pleasure in presenting to you, on behalf ofthe Board of Directors, the 32nd Annual Report highl ighting the Company's 
performance in various metrics through the period alongwith the Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 st March 2022 together 
with the reports ofthe Statutory Auditors and the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon. 

1 Financial Highlights 

The company has achieved turnover of � 4586 lakhs and has made a Profit for the year of �51 6 Lakhs and Total 
Comprehensive Income of � 527 Lakhs during the year. 

The summary of the company's financial results is given below:-

Particulars 

Total Income 
Profit Before Depreciation, Finance Costs and Tax 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation 
Profit Before Tax 
Provision for Taxation 
Profit for the year 
Total Comprehensive Income 

2 Dividend 

� in Lakhs 

2021 ·2022 2020-2021 

6033 5953 
2787 2784 

22 73 
1 996 1 999 
769 712  
253 222 
51 6 490 
527 444 

The Directors have recommended a dividend of 40% of PATforthe year 2021 -22 which amounts to � 2.06 Cr. 

3 Amount transferred to Reserves 

It is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves ofthe Company for the year. 

4 Order Book Position 

The order status ofthe company as on 01 .04.2022 was � 1 7.71 Crores as compared to � 1 6.04 Crores as on 01 .04.2021 . 
During the yearthe company has received orders worth �47.00 Cr. 

5 Future Outlook 

The XR-5 project is in the final stages of implementation . 

BELOP has initiated action to diversify into related areas and also new areas to improve business opportunities and to have 
variety of products in it's portfolio. The project for manufacture of aviation hoses in accordance with the Offset Contract 
with MIs Rosoboronexport, Russia is under initial stages of implementation. 

6 MoU with Government 

BELOP has signed a Memorandum of Understanding(MoU) with it's holding company Bharat Electronics Limited 
(BEL).The Directors would like to inform you that for the year (2020-21 ) the company's performance has been rated as 
'Very Good'. 

7 Finance 

During the financial year 2021 -22, your company has met it's fund requirements towards incremental working capital and 
additional investments on upgradation of infrastructure and capital equipments mainly from internal resources. Borrowing 
has been minimised through close monitoring of cash flows and efficient cash management. BEL has also committed to 
fund the XR-5 project cost by way of infusion of equity and by way of loan. BELOP plans to invest throu gh internal accruals 
and also borrow funds to finance the Aviation Hoses project. 
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8 Credit Rating 

During the year 2021 -22, ICRA has assigned the following ratings to the companyforthe year 2021 -22 

(i) Long-term rating of [ICRA]AA+(pronounced ICRAdouble A+) to �4000 lakhs fund based bank limits. 

(ii) Short-term rating of [ICRA]A 1 + (pronounced ICRA Aone plus) to �570 lakhs non-fund based bank l imits. 

BELOP 

The long term rating of [ICRA]AA+ is with a stable outlook. These ratings indicate the high credit quality in the long- and 
short-term. Both the ratings are valid till 3 1 s1 March 2023. These ratings will help the company in obtaining the better terms 
for the various working capital faci lities being availed from the Consortium Banks. 

9 Deposits 

The Company is not having any deposits under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 201 3  and hence, disclosure under Rule 8 
(5) (v) and (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4  are not applicable. 

10 Research & Development (R&D) 

The Company's D&E Department, along with relevant experienced Executives from manufacturin g  Departments, are 
driving and executing the developments towards products, process and upgradation of manufacturin g  and Test 
Equipment. 

During the year, the R&D team has carried out the following activities in specific areas as outlined below:-

• Improvement in Design of Dewar Assembly for Cooled Thermal Imager applications. 

• Design and Development of MCP based Photomultiplier Tube for scientific applications. 

The company is also taking efforts to develop new products by using its competencies and skil l .  

The Company makes continuous efforts to upgrade the existing Products, to provide better product qual ity and increased 
productivity in the manufacture and supply. 

11 Human Resources 

Your company employed 1 29 persons as on 31 sl March 2022 as compared to 1 31 persons on 31 s\ March 2021 . Of these 
employees, 33 were executives and 5 were women employees. No employee was inducted during the year, one employee 
died during the year, one employee retired during the year and no employee resigned during the year. 

12 Industrial Relations 

Industrial relations during the year were cordial. 

13 Environment Management 

BELOP maintains clean surroundings and green environment at it's premises. The company also undertakes, measures 
for stringent pollution control, waste water treatment, zero effluent discharge, energy conservation, water conservation, 
systematic management and disposal of hazardous and other forms of waste. 

The Sustainabil ity Report at Annexure 1 to the Board's Report contains further details on Environment Management. 

14 Quality 

The company has introduced Integrated Management System, based on QMS ISO 9001 :2015  and EMS ISO 1 4001 :201 5 
Standards. The company has got Certified for Integrated Management System, based on QMS ISO 9001 :201 5 and EMS 
ISO 1 4001 :201 5 Standards from MIs TUV SUD South Asia (P) Ltd , Pune in the month of January 201 9 which is valid for 
three years. The Annual Survell ianceAudit has been conducted during 2021 -22 and the above certification is confirmed. 
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1 5  Safety 

The company has a structured organisation for safety of it's personnel, plant and machinery. The Safety Committee 
reviews safety requirements and safety performance on a regular basis. 

During the year the following activities have been carried out:-

• Conduct ofSafetyAudit as per lS: 14489-201 8. 
• Testing of Nitrogen Storage Tanks Safety Valves. 
• Repairing of Electrical Hoists done. 
• AMC for Fire Hydrant System to ensure Building Fire Safety. 
• Servicing of York Screw Chillers . .  
• Removal & replacement of Old Pipe Util ities Pipe Line. 
• Periodic checking all the Safety Gad gets, PPEs being issued to the employees, 
• Conduct of health check up for the employees. 

1 6  Details of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies 

The Company does not have any subsidiaries. The Company has not acquired or disinvested any subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies during the year under review. 

1 7  Disclosure on Establishment of Vigil Mechanism 

The provisions of Section 1 77 (9) and ( 10) of the Companies Act, 201 3  relating to Establishment ofVigil lVlechanism is not 
applicable to the Company and hence, the said disclosure requirements are not applicable. 

1 8  Vigilance 

A Vi gilance Officer for BELOP has been appointed from the year 201 2-1 3  by Chief Vigilance Officer, BEL. The Vigilance 
Department examines procurements, contracts and processes on continual basis, conducts regular and surprise 
inspections and investigates instances of any suspected transactions referred to it. Any employee or third parties can refer 
any suspected transaction to the Vigilance Officer for investigation. 

Performance of the Vigilance Department during the year has been satisfactory. All the executives of the company have 
filed their Annual Property Returns(APR's) ti l l  the date mandated and 80% of the APR's have been scrutinised for block 
period 201 8-22. Regular checkups has been conducted upto 31 .03.2022. The Details of POs as per vigilance criteria are 
published in BELOP website since January 2020. 65 Regular checkups and 41  Surprise inspections were conducted from 
01 .04.2021 to 31 .03.2022. The Vigilance Awareness Week 2021 was observed and competitions conducted. There is no 
case pending under investi gation. 

19 Integrity Pact 

The Central Vigilance Commission has taken an initiative of introduction of the Integrity Pact for large value contracts in all 
Government Organisations for eradication of corruption in procurement activity. In l ine with the directives from the Ministry 
of Defence and the Central Vigilance Commission, BELOP is required to enter into an Integrity Pact with all the 
vendors/suppliers/contractors/ service providers for all Orders/Contracts of value � 300 lakhs and above. However, during 
October 2020 the BELOP Board has mandated that Integrity pact has to be entered in respect of all orders above 
� 200 lakhs and to be reported to BEL-CO-VIG. No Purchase Order above order � 200 lakhs has been placed during the 
year. 

20 Implementation of RTI Act{RTIA) 

The company has designated certain executives as Public Information Officer, Asst. Public Information Officer and 
Appel iateAuthority as specified under the Right to Information Act, 2005. During the year 2021 -22, the company received 
one request for information under the RTI Act,2005 and the requisite information was furnished within the stipulated time. 

21 Directorate 

Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar was appOinted as a Director, retiring by rotation at the 31 81 Annual General Meeting of the company 
held on 24th September 2021 . I n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 201 3  and Articles of Association 
of the company. Mr. M.V Rajasekhar retires by rotation and being el i gible offers himself for re-appointment. 

Mr. M.V. Gowtama and Mr. Shivakumaran K M ceased to be Directors after withdrawal of their nomination by BEL 
subsequent to their superannuation. The Board places on record their valuable support and guidance to the company. 

7 
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22 Board Meetingsl Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

Sr. 
No. 

1 

2 

3 

During the year five Board meetings were held, the details of which form part of the Corporate Governance Report. 

The details of changes with regard to the Directorate and Key Managerial Personnel of the company during the financial 
year are as follows :-

Date of 
Name of Director/KMP Designation appointment! Remarks 

cessation 

Mr. M .v. Rajasekhar Director Appointment Appointed initially as Additional Director in 
on 30.07.2021 accordance to the nomination by BEL. He was 

reappointed as Director retiring by rotation at 
the 31 sl AGM on 24.09.2021 . 

Mr. M .v. Gowtama Chairman Cessation S u bsequent to h is  supera n n uation ,h is  

on  01 .07.2021 nomination was withdrawn by BEL. He ceased 
to be Directorofthe companyw.eJ. 01 .07.2021 . 

Mr. Shivakumaran K M Director Cessation Subsequent to his superannuation ,  h is  

on 01 .09.2021 nomination was withdrawn by BEL. He ceased 
to be Directorofthe companyw.eJ. 01 .09.2021 . 

Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao, Chief Executive Officer, Mrs. Priya Iyer, Company Secretary and Mr. P. Sarkar, Chief Financial 
Officer are the KMP's as defined under Section 2(5 1 )  ofthe CompaniesAct, 201 3. 

23 Declaration by Independent Directors 

The Company did not have any independent directors during the financial year and hence, the declaration by Independent 
Directors is not applicable. 

24 Directors' responsibility statement 

To the best of their knowled ge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your 
Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 1 34(3)(c) ofthe Companies Act, 201 3: 

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alon g with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the company for the year ended on that date. 

c) that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d)  that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and such financial controls were adequate and were operating 
effectively; 

f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

25 Significant and material orders 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company's operations in future. 

26 Events Subsequent to the Date of Financial Statements: 

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred between 
31 8tMarch 2022 and date of s igning this report is N IL. 

8 
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27 Statutory Auditors 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has appointed MIs PRASS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Pune as 
the statutory auditors for the year 2021 -22 pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 39(5) of the Companies Act, 201 3. The 
internal audit ofthe company for the year 2021 -22 was conducted by the internal audit team of BEL. 

28 Statutory Auditors' Report and CAG Certificate 

The Auditors have audited the Accounts for the year 2021 -22 and their Report is placed as a part of the Annual Report. 
There was no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditor in his Report. 

The "Nil Comments Certificate" of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the year 2021 -22 under Section 1 43(6)(b) 
of the Companies Act, 201 3 is appended to this report. 

29 Secretarial Audit 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 201 3 and the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 201 4  the company has appOinted Mr. Yogesh Kandalgaonkar, practising Company Secretary as the 
Secretarial Auditor for the year 2021 -22. The Secretarial Aud it Report submitted by Mr. Yogesh 
Kandal gaoankar is enclosed at Annexure 2. 

The Secretarial Auditor in his Report observed the following: 

The Company is yet to appoint the adequate number of functional Directors and Independent Directors on the Board, and 
accordingly unable to reconstitute the composition of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Remuneration 
Committee, which results in non-compliance of Clause 3.1, 4.1.1, 4.1.2, 4.4 and 5.1 of the Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. 

Explanation by the Board :-

During the year 2021 -22, an application has been made to the Department of Public Enterprises for categorisation of the 
Company and the same was under consideration as on 31 .03.2022. The Government of India would fill up the vacancies of 
the said Functional and Independent Directors after categorisation ofthe Company. 

30 Compliance with OPE guidelines on Corporate Governance 

BELOP has initiated steps to ensure compliance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance. The compliance report 
on compliance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance is enclosed at Annexure 3. 

The followin g  non-compliances are stated in the above report which have also been pointed out by the Secretarial Auditor. 

However, the Company is yet to appoint the adequate number of functional Directors and Independent Directors, and 
accordingly unable to reconstitute the composition of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Remuneration 
Committee, which results in non-compliance of Clause 3.1, 4.1.1, 4.1.2, 4.4 and 5.1 of the Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of lndia. 

Explanation by the Board :-

During the year 2021 -22, an application has been made to the Department of Public Enterprises for categorisation of the 
Company and the same was under consideration as on 31 .03.2022. The Government of India would fill up the vacancies of 
the said Functional and Independent Directors after categorisation of the Company. 

31 Compliance with applicable secretarial standards: 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards. 

32 Cost Records 

The company maintains cost records as specified under Section 1 48 of the Companies Act,2014 .  However, since the 
turnover of the Company during the immediately preceding financial year is less than the amount specified under the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,  the audit ofthe cost records is not applicable. 

9 
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33 Audit Committee 

BELOP 

BELOP has an Audit Committee which carries out the functions mandated in the Companies Act, 201 3. The Report on 
Corporate Governance at Annexure 4 gives for details about composition ofthe Audit Committee along with the members' 
attendance. 

34 Related Party Transactions 

There were no materially significant related party transactions with the company's promoters, Directors, Management or 
their relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the company. Transactions with related parties 
that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. 
All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for approval, if required. Members 
may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions. The details under Form AOC-I I  is enclosed at 
Annexure 5.  

35 Loans/Guarantees/Investments 

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 1 86 ofthe CompaniesAct, 201 3  are 'NIL'. 

36 Details of difference between amount ofthe valuation of loans 

During the financial year ended 31 st March, 2022 BELOP has repaid the loan taken from the holding company and the 
differences arising on valuation have been accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss. There is no loan outstanding 
as on 31 st March 2022. 

37 Annual Return 

The copy of the annual return of the Company for the Financial Years 2021 -22 will be made available in format MGT - 7 on 
the web-l ink https: !lwww.belop-india.in. 

38 Remuneration Policy 

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a Draft Policy relating to 
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The details are set out in the Corporate 
Governance Report at Annexure 4.  

39 Internal Financial Controls 

The company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. A detailed note on 
internal financial controls is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 

40 Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: 

There are no frauds reported for the period under review by the Auditor's under section 1 43( 1 2) of the Companies Act, 201 3 
other than those which are reportable to the Central Government and hence, the said disclosure requirements are not 
applicable. 

41 Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as per the Government(DPE) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for 
Central Public Sector Enterprises(CPSEs), is attached to this Report at Annexure 6. 

42 Corporate Governance Report 

A report on Corporate Governance as per the DPE guidelines for Central Public Enterprises is attached to this Report at 
Annexure 4.  

43 Risk Management 

The measures taken for managing risks is set out in the Corporate Governance Report. 
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44 Corporate Social Responsibility 

As per the provisions of Section 1 35 of the Companies Act, 201 3  and The Companies{Corporate Social Responsibil ity) 
Rules, 201 4  it is recommended that the company should undertake CSR activities and spend at least two percent of the 
average net profits ofthe three preceding financial years on CSR activities. 

Pursuant to Rule 8 of The Companies{Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 201 4  a report on CSR activities for the 
financial year 2021 -22 is annexed herewith as Annexure 7. 

45 Sustainability Report 

As required under the Guidelines on "Sustainable Development" issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Govt. of 
India a separate chapter on the company's efforts on "Sustainable Development" during the year 2021 -22 is annexed to 
this Report at Annexure 1. 

46 Particulars of Employees information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel Rules), 2014  

The Company being a Government Company, the said disclosure requirements under Section 1 97 are not applicable 
pursuant to Notification No. GSR 463{E), dated 05.06.2015. 

47 Disclosure under Sexual harrassment of Women at Workplace(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013  

The company i s  an  equal opportunity employer and consciously strives to build a work culture that promotes dignity of all 
employees. The company has constituted an internal complaints committee to redress complaints relating to sexual 
harassment. No complaint on sexual harassment has been received during the year. 

48 Other Disclosures 

Information required to be disclosed in accordance with Section 1 34(3){m) of the Companies Act, 201 3  read with 
Companies{Accounts) Rules,201 4  regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo is given at Annexure 8. 

49 Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016  
(310f2016) 

During the Financial Year ended 31 sl March, 2022 neither the Company made any application nor any proceeding against 
the Company is pending as perthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 201 6 (31 of 20 1 6). 

50 Acknowledgement 

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the valuable support received from all the Customers particularly the 
Defence Services and the para mil itary forces and also the Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Production and 
look forward to their continued support and co-operation in future. Your Directors also appreciate the co-operation 
extended by MIs Photon is for implementation of ToT at BELOP and look forward to a continued fruitful association in 
future. Your Directors also appreciate the cooperation of MIs Rosoboronexport in implementation of the Offset Contract for 
manufacture of aviation hoses and look forward to a successful association with them in the coming years. Your Directors 
express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, Chairman, Members and Employees of the 
Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Company's Bankers and Vendors. Your Directors appreciate the sincere efforts put in by 
all the employees at all levels which enabled your company to achieve the good performance during the year. Your 
Directors express their appreciation and gratitude for the support received from the holding Company, 
MIs Bharat Electronics Limited and look forward to it's continued support and participation in sustaining the growth of the 
company in the coming years. 

Place :  - Bengaluru 
Date : - 26th July 2022 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

sd/-
(Anandi Ramalingam) 

Chairman 
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Annexure No.1 to Board's Report 

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 

Government of India, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide Office Memorandum No. 3(9)-201 0-DPE (MoU) dated 
23 September 201 1  issued guidelines on Sustainable Development for Central Public Enterprises. 

Above DPE guidelines define" Sustainable Development" as "Development that meets the needs of the present without 
compromisin g  the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Sustainable Development involves an enduring and 
balanced approach to economic activity, social progress and environmental responsibil ity. 

BELOP which, is certified for ISO 14001 :2004, is committed to sustain the environment with growth. It maintains a green 
environment in it's premises and has implemented various environmental management practices. 

Sustainable DevelopmentActivities 

Emissions toAir 

Air emissions from process are controlled through appropriate air pollution control Equipment. Air emission stacks are monitored 
as per Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution )Act 1 981 on quarterly basis. 

Water Management 

As per MPCB Consent, Company has installed water meters at appropriate locations and is monitoring consumption of water on 
daily basis. 

Noise Pollution 

The noise levels in the factory premises are measured periodically, as per MPCB Consent &Act on quarterly basis. 

Water Pollution 

The industrial effluents are treated in ETP Plant & disposed off as per MPCB norms. The company has also installed Sewage 
Treatment Plant (STP) for treatment of effluents & recycled water is used for horticulture. 

Hazardous Waste Management System 

The company is disposing its Hazardous Waste as per Hazardous Waste Rules 2008, to MPCB authorised recycler. Regular 
returns of the same are being submitted in Form IV every year. During the year the company has made efforts to re-use certain 
hazardous items used in manufacturing processes in order to reduce their consumption and potential impact on the environment. 
BELOP has signed Sell ing agency Agreement with MSTC for disposal of Sel l ing of Scrap Materials. 

On Site Emergency Plan and Systems 

Local & Company wide Mock Drill are conducted periodically & On Site Emergency Plan has been displayed in factory premises 
at prominent locations 

Ecological Sustainability 

The company focuses on planting trees and maintaining a green and clean environment. 
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To, 

Form No. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year Ended 31 .03.2022 

Annexure No.2 to Board's Report 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1 ) of the Companies Act, 201 3 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 4] 

The Members, 
BEL Optronic Devices Limited, 
EL30, J Block, MIDC Bhosari, Pune 4 1 1 026 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by BEL Optronic Devices Limited (CIN: U321 00PN1990GOI058096), (hereinafter called the "Company"). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification ofthe Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial 
Year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the statutory provisions l isted hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The CompaniesAct, 201 3  (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1 956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period); 

(ii i )  The Depositories Act, 1 996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchan ge Management Act, 1 999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunderto the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (During the year under review 
not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have any foreign direct investment, overseas direct 
investment and external commercial borrowings); 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchan ge Board of India Act, 1 992 
(,SEBI Act') are not applicable to the Company during the audit period as the Company is an unlisted Company: -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
201 1  ; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of InsiderTrading) Regulations, 201 5; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 8; 

(d) The Securities and Exchan ge Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021 ; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1 993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 ; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 201 8; 
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(vi) As informed to me, no other specific laws were applicable to the Company during the audit period. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued byThe I nstitute of Company Secretaries of India. 

BELOP 

(ii) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department of 
Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. 

I have not examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following since it is not applicable to the Company during the 
audit period as the Company is an unl isted Company: 

(i) The Listin g  Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listin g  Obl igations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

a) The Company is yet to appoint the adequate number of functional Directors and Independent Directors on the 
Board, and accordingly unable to reconstitute the composition of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and 
Remuneration Committee, which results in non-compliance of Clause 3. 1, 4.1. 1, 4. 1.2, 4.4 and 5. 1 of the Guidelines 
on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. 

It is informed that the appointment of Directors is done by the Government of India for all CPSEs which are categorised in the 
Schedule of CPSEs. The Company has applied for categorisation and the application is pending with the Department of Public 
Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. The Government of India would fill up the vacancies of the said Functional and 
Independent Directors after categorisation of the Company. 

I further report that, subject to my observations mentioned above, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. 
The Company being wholly owned subsidiary of Bharat Electronics Limited (BEL), all the directors ofthe Company are nominated 
by BEL. The Changes in the composition ofthe Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetin gs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seekin g  and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetin g. 

All decisions at Board Meetin gs and Committee Meetin gs were carried out unanimously. As per the records provided by the 
Company, none of the members of the Board or Committees of the Board dissented on any resolution(s) passed at the meetin gs. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period -

a) The Company in its 31 st Annual General Meetin g  held on 24th September 2021 altered the Objects clause of the 
Memorandum of Association to incorporate the new areas of operations in which the company proposes to diversify. 

sd/-
Yogesh Kandalgaonkar 
Company Secretary 
FCS No. 6197, C.P. No. 2031 6 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN): F006197D000325747 

Place : Pune 
Date: May 1 6, 2022 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this 
report. 
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report 

To, 

The Members, 

BEL Optronic Devices Limited, 

EL30, J Block, MIDC Bhosari, Pune 4 1 1 026 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1 .  Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibil ity ofthe Management ofthe Company. My responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on audit. 

2.  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 

are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 

opinion . 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibil ity 

of Management. My examination was l imited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

sd/-

Yogesh Kandalgaonkar 

Company Secretary 

FCS No. 6197, C.P. No. 2031 6 

Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN): F006197D000325747 

Place : Pune 

Date: May 1 6, 2022 
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Annexure No.3 to Board's Report 

Certificate on Corporate Governance 

The Members of BEL Optronic Devices Limited, 

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by BEL Optronic Devices Limited 
(CIN:  U321 00PN1990G01058096) ("the Company" ), for the year ended on 318t March 2022, as per the Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government 
of India. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibil ity ofthe Management ofthe Company. My examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
the Corporate Governance. 

Opinion 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central 
Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. 

However, the Company is yet to appoint the adequate number of functional Directors and Independent Directors, and accordingly 

unable to reconstitute the composition of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, which results in 

non-compliance of Clause 3. 1, 4.1.1, 4. 1.2, 4.4 and 5. 1 of the Guidelines on Corporate Govemance issued by the Department of 

Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. 

It is informed that the appointment of Directors is done by the Government of India for all CPSEs which are categorised in the 
Schedule of CPSEs. The Company has applied for categorisation and the application is pending with the Department of Public 
Enterprises (DPE), Government of India. It is informed that the Government of India would fill up the vacancies of the said 
Functional and Independent Directors after categorisation of the Company. 

I state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company. 

Restrictions on use 

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central 
Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India and may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. 

sd/-
Yogesh Kandalgaonkar 
Company Secretary 
FCS No. 6197, C.P. No. 2031 6 
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN): F006197D000120311 

Place :  Pune 
Date: 1 5 April 2022 
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Annexure No. 4 to the Board's Report 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Philosophy and Code of Governance 

BELOP's philosophy of Corporate Governance is based on the principles of honesty, integrity, accountability, adequate 
disclosures, legal compliances, transparency in decision-making and avoiding confl icts of interest. BELOP believes in customer 
satisfaction, financial prudence and commitment to values. Our corporate structure, business and disclosure practices have 
been al igned to our Corporate Governance philosophy. 

Board of Directors 

Composition 

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 201 3,  BELOP being a wholly owned subsidiary of Bharat Electronics Limited is a 'Government 
Company". 

At present, the Board of Directors comprises of three Directors including the Chairman. The Chairman of the BEL Board is the 
Chairman ofthe Board and BELOP.AII the three Directors are nominated by BEL (as per the Articles of Association) of BE LOP. 

The composition ofthe Board of Directors is given below :-

a) 
b) 
c) 
d) 
e) 

Shri. M.V. Gowtama,Chairman(upto 30.06.2021 ) 
Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam,Chairman(w.e.f.01 .07.2021 )  
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 
Mr. Shivakumaran K M (upto 30.08.2021 ) 
Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar(w.e.f. 30.07.2021 )  

Meetings and Attendance 

CMD,BEL & Chairman,BELOP 
CMD,BEL & Chairman,BELOP 
Director(Fin.) ,BEL & Director,BELOP 
Director(HR),BEL & Director,BELOP 
Director(R & D),BEL & Director,BELOP 

During the financial year ended 31 .03.2022, five Board Meetings were held and the maximum interval between any two meetings 
was 88 days. The Board Meetings were held on 1 9.04.2021 , 04.06.2021 , 30.07.2021 ,26 . 1 0.2021 and 1 2.01 .2022. Details of 
attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and the number of other Directorships/Committee 
memberships held by them during 2021 -22 etc. are given below:-

Meetings No. of Attendance No. of 
held Board at the last other 

Sr. Directors 
during Meetings AGM held directorsh 

respective attended on 24th ips held* 
No. tenure of September 

Director 2021 

Part time Directors 

1 Mr. M.V.Gowtama 2 2 No 1 

2 **Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam 5 5 Yes 2 

3 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 5 5 Yes 2 

4 Mr. Shivakumaran K M 3 3 No 1 

5 Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar 3 2 Yes 3 

*Membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee alone are considered. 
** Director upto 1 9th July 2021 in BEL-Thales Systems Limited 

Code of Conduct 

Number of 
Committee 

membership 
across all 

companies 

As 

I 
As 

Chairman Member 

Nil Ni l  

0 2 

2 1 

0 1 

0 2 

Board of Directors of your company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior management personnel 
of the company as per the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the Department 
of Public Enterprises(DPE Guidel ines). All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct during the year 2021 -22. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman is attached to this Report. 
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Committees of the Board of Directors 

Audit Committee 

The composition of the Company's Audit Committee is three Directors as specified in Section 1 77 of the CompaniesAct, 201 3. In 
addition, the Statutory Auditor of the Company and the I nternal Auditor attend the meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company 
Secretary is the Secreta� to the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on 24 September 2021 . The terms of reference of the Aud it Committee are as specified in Section 1 77 of the 
CompaniesAct, 201 3  and as perthe DPE guidelines. 

Some ofthe important functions performed by the Audit Committee are as follows: 

• Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible 

• Reviewing the quarterly unaudited financial statements 
• Approval of remuneration to statutory auditors 
• Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors ofthe company 
• Reviewing the Management Discussion &Analysis Report on financial and operational performance 
• Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's system and internal controls and Governance and audit 

Processes and risk management systems 
• Reviewing and discussing with the Management the company's major financial risk exposures and steps taken by the 

Management to monitor and control such exposure 
• Review the significant audit findings from the statutory and internal audits carried out, the recommendations and 

Management's response thereto. 
• To grant approval for transactions with related parties including any subsequent modifications thereto. 
• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments 
• Valuation of undertakings or assets ofthe company, wherever it is necessary. 

During the year ended 31 .03.2022, the Audit Committee met five times on 1 9.04.2021 , 04.06.2021 , 30.07.2021 ,26. 1 0.2021 and 
1 2.01 .2022. 

The composition oftheAudit Committee is as outlined below:-

1 )  
2) 
3) 
4) 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 
Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam 
Mr.Shivakumaran K M((upto 30.08.2021 )  
Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar(w.e.f. 30.07.2021 )  

Chairman 
Member 
Member 
Member 

The attendance ofthe Chairman and members oftheAudit Committee in the above meetings was as follows:-

Meetings held during No. of meetings 
Name respective tenure of attended 

Director 
Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam 5 5 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 5 5 

Mr. Shivakumaran K M 3 3 

Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar 3 2 

Risk Management 

The company has put in place a comprehensive 'Risk Management Framework' for the continuous identification, updation, 
evaluation ,  prioritization and management of risks. Under this framework, at Apex Level there is Risk Management 
Committee(RMC) headed by the Chief Executive Officer(BELOP) and members drawn from important functional areas like 
manufacturing, Marketing, Design and Engineering, Finance and HR. The Risk Champion (RC) is at the level of Sr.DGM. The 
RMC reviews the risk management efforts in the company as a whole in a quarterly basis. The RMC submits quarterly report to 
the management and the Audit Committee. The company reports about the status of RM to the Board annually. 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as outlined below:-

1 )  Mr. Shivakumaran K M«upto 30.08.2021 )  Chairman 

2) Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar(w.eJ. 30.07.2021 )  Chairman 

3) Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam Member 

4) Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra Member 

During the year ended 31 .03.2022 the NRC Committee met five times on 1 9.04.2021 , 04.06.2021 , 30.07.2021 ,26. 1 0.2021 and 
1 2.01 .2022. 

The attendance of the Chairman and members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in the above meetings was as 
follows:-

Meetings held during No. of meetings Name respective tenure of 
Director 

attended 

Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam 5 5 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 5 5 

Mr.Shivakumaran K M 3 3 

Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar 3 2 

Some ofthe functions ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:-

• Recommending policy to the Board in l ine with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3, DPE guidelines and 
Presidential directives/guidelines issued by the Government of Ind ia. 

• Recommendation to the Board of all pay related matters 

Remuneration Policy 

a) Remuneration to Directors 

BELOP would fix the remuneration of Directors whenever required, in a manner that is compliant with the prescriptions 
laid down by Government of India communicated from the Ministry of Defence, from time to time. 

b) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel(KMP) and other Employees 

BELOP would ensure the fol lowin g  while fixing the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(KMP) and other 
Employees 

i) The company shall abide by any directives issued by the Government of India in this regard. 

i i) The level and composition of remuneration fixed would be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
the employees required to run the company successfully. 

i i i) The level of remuneration would meet the appropriate benchmarks and there would exist a clear relationship 
between performance and remuneration. 

iv) The remuneration would comprise of a fixed pay and incentive pay in a judicious proportion appropriate to the 
working of the company and enabling the company to achieve it's short-term and lon g term performance objectives 
and goals. 

Remuneration to Directors 

The Company does not pay any remuneration to its Directors. The Company has not issued any stock options to its Directors. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

In pursuant to the provisions of section 1 35 of the Companies Act, 201 3 the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been 
constituted. 
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The salient terms of reference ofthe Corporate Social Responsibil ity Committee (CSR) include 

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the 
activities to be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VI I .  

b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause 'a' 

c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibil ity Policy ofthe company from time to time. 

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as outlined below:-

1 )  Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam Chairman 

2) Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra Member 

3) Mr. M.v. Rajasekhar(w.e.f. 30.07.2021 ) Member 

4) Mr. Shivakumaran K M(upto 30.08.2021 ) Member 

During the year ended 31 .03.2022, the CSR Committee met five times on 1 9.04.2021 , 04.06.2021 ,  30.07.2021 ,  
26. 1 0.2021 and 1 2.01 .2022. 

The attendance of the Chairman and members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in the above meetings 
was as follows:-

Meetings held during No. of meetings Name respective tenure of attended 
Director 

Mrs. Anandi Ramalingam 5 5 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 5 5 

Mr. M .v. Rajasekhar 3 2 

Mr.Shivakumaran K M 3 3 

The details ofthe various CSR activities is furnished at Annexure 7. 

Directors' Shareholding 

No Director holds Equity shares in the company as on 31 .03.2022. 

Other Board Subcommittees 

Your Directors have constituted the following Subcommittees of the Board:-

Investment Committee consisting of the Chairman, two Directors, CEO, and Head of Finance to approve investment of 
short-term surplus funds. 

Related Party Transactions 

All transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms length pricing basis. 

General Body Meetings 

Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as fol lows:-

Year Location 
201 8-1 9  Registered Office 
201 9-20 Through VC 
2020-21  Through VC 

Date & Time 
9th September 201 9 at 1 3.00 PM 
7th September 2020 at 1 0.00 AM 
24th September 2021 at 1 4.30 PM 

All the resolutions, including special resolutions, set out in the respective notices of last three Annual General Meetings 
were passed by the shareholders. No resolutions were put throu gh postal ballot last year. 
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Disclosures 

(a) The Company has not entered into any materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with 
the interests of the Company at large. Nonetheless, transactions with related parties have been disclosed in point NO. 7 of 
Note 40 of Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report. 

(b) No other expenses, which are personal in nature, were incurred for the Board of Directors and Top Management. 

(c) No items of expenditure, other than those directly related to its business or incidental thereto, and those spent towards the 
welfare of its employees/ex-employees, were debited in books of accounts. 

(d) Administrative and office expenses as a percentage oftotal expenses and reasons for increase, if any: 

Administrative and office expenses were 2 . 14  % of the total expenses for the year 2021 -22 as against 1 .70 % in the 
previous year. 

MCA-21 Compliance 

The e-governance initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the administration of the Companies Act, 1 956 (MCA-21 ) 
provides the public, corporate entities and others an easy and secure online access to the corporate information including the 
fi l ing of documents and public access to the information required to be in public domain under the statute, at any time and from 
anywhere. The Company has complied with all mandatory e-fil ing requirements under MCA-21 , during 2021 -22. 

Presidential Directives and Guidelines 

The company is required to follow the Presidential Directives and guidelines issued by the Government of India from time to time 
regarding reservation for SC's, ST's and OBC's in letter and spirit. The company has implemented the above presidential 
directives and guidelines including appointment of Liaison Officer for SC/ST & OBC. 

Shareholding Pattern as on 31 March 2022 

Sr. Category 
No. of No. of 

% Holding Shareholders Shares 

1 Promoter - M/s Bharat Electronics Limited 1 8,45,06,970 1 00.00 

Top 10 Shareholders as on 31 March 2021 

Sr. Name No. of % Holding Shareholders 

1 Promoter -M/s Bharat Electronics Limited 8,45,06,970 1 00.00 

Details of Nominee shareholders of BEL 

Sr. 
Name 

Sr. 
Name NO. NO. 

1 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 5 Mr. Naveen Kumar 

2 Dr. Ajit T. Kalghatgi 6 Mr. P. S. Joshi 

3 Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao 7 Ms. Priya S lyer 

4 Mr. Srinivas T. N.  

Credit Rating 

ICRAhas assigned the following credit ratings ofthe Company for 2021 -22: 

(i) Long-term rating of [ICRA]AA+ (pronounced ICRAdouble Aplus) to �4000 lakhs fund based bank limits. 

(i i) Short-term ratin g  of [ICRA]A 1 + (pronounced ICRA Aone plus) to �570 lakhs non-fund based bank limits. 

The outlook on the long-term rating is 'stable'. These ratings are valid till 31 st March 2023. 
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CEO/CFO Certification 

In terms of the requirements of DPE Guidelines, the CEO/CFO certificate has been obtained and placed before the Audit 
Committee and the Board and is provided in this Annual report. 

Compliance of Corporate Governance Guidelines 

The company has been submitting quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance to the DPE. 

The DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs provide that the CPSEs would be graded on the basis of their 
compliance with the guidelines. The rating by DPE for the year 2020-21 and 2021 -22 in respect to compliance of Corporate 
Governance guidelines by the Department of Public Enterprises is awaited . 

Registered Office/Address for Correspondence 

BEL Optronic Devices Ltd. 
Registered Office, EL-30,'J', Block, MIDC, Bhosari Industrial Area, Pune- 41 1 026 
Phone: (020) 271 30981 /2/3/4; Fax: (020) 271 30589; e-mail :  info@belop.co.in 

Declaration 

Pursuant to the Department of Public Enterprises(DPE) Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector 
Enterprises as contained in the DPE OM No. 1 8(8)/2005-GM dt. 1 4111 May 201 0, all Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Board Members, KMP's & 
Senior Management of BEL Optronic Devices Limited forthe year ended 31 s\ March 2022. 

Place :  - Bengaluru 
Date: - 26th July 2022 

22 

For BEL OPTRONIC DEVICES LIMITED 

sd/-
(Anandi Ramalingam) 

Chairman 
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Annexure No. 5 to the Board's Report 

Form No. AOC-II 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 1 34 of the Companies Act, 201 3  and 

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201 4) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/agreements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub­

section (1 ) of section 1 88 ofthe CompaniesAct, 201 3 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1 .  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship : NotApplicable 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : Not Applicable 

(c) Duration ofthe contracts/arrangements/transactions : NotApplicable 

(d) Salient terms ofthe contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any : NotApplicable 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions : NotApplicable 

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board : NotApplicable 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any : NotApplicable 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 1 88: Not 

Applicable 

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship : NotApplicable 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : NotApplicable 

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions : NotApplicable 

(d) Salient terms ofthe contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any : NotApplicable 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board : NotApplicable 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any : None 

Place :  - Bengaluru 
Date: - 26th July 2022 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

sd/-
(Anandi Ramalingam) 

Chairman 
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Annexure No. 6 to Board's Report 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

A) Industry Structure and Developments, Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats and Major Initiatives 
undertaken and planned to ensure sustained performance and growth 

a) General outlook of economy. industry in which the Company operates. Government Budget. particularly the Defence 
Budget. market conditions and how these impact the Company. measures taken I action plan to protect the interest of the 
Company: 

The economic shock ofthe pandemic has been weathered well by India. After a sharp contraction of economy (-7.3%) in FY 
2020-21 , Indian economy witnessed the expected V shape recovery and growth of 9% in FY 2021 -22. Economic impact of 
Covid "second wave" during first quarter of FY 2021 -22 was relatively less, primarily due to Government of India's response 
comprising of safety-nets to cushion the impact on vulnerable sections of society and the business sector, significant 
increase in capital expenditure to spur growth and supply side reforms for a sustained long-term expansion. Indian 
Economy has performed well almost on all Macroeconomic Performance indicators, including fall in fiscal deficit from 9.2 % 
of GOP (in FY 2020-2 1 )  to 6.9% of GOP during FY 2021 -22. 

After attaining pre pandemic levels in FY 2021 -22, going forward in FY 2022-23, the challenge would be to return to a high 
growth trajectory. As per Monetary policy committee of RBI (in February 22), GOP growth is estimated to be 7.8%. There is 
good pick up visible on both demand & private investment front, however, inflation due to rise in oil and commodities prices 
on account of Russia-Ukraine crisis, continued shortage of semiconductors and global Covid outlook may pose challenge 
to momentum in short term. 

b) SWOT Analysis 

.:. Strengths: 

• Availability of State oftheArt Technology, Infrastructure and trained Manpower to manufacture high performance 1 . 1  
Tubes indigenously 

• Over two decades of experience resu lting in excellent domain knowledge and core competenCies in the area of 
Image Intensifier Tubes 

• Strong support due to long term commitment to customers, especially from Indian MoD, by way of substantial 
capital investment 

• BELOP manufactured Image Intensifier Tubes approved as Buyer Nominated Equipment for all Image Intensifier 
Tubes based Passive Night Vision Devices 

• Certified for Integrated Management System based on QMS ISO 9001 :201 5 and EMS ISO 14001 :201 5 Standards. 
All other systems and procedures aligned to holding company(Navaratna PSU) standards. 

• Financial Support from Holding company for new projects for diversification 

• Space available for creating new infrastructure for various projects 

• Available manpower easily adaptable for manufacture of any other devices with minimal training 

.:. Weaknesses: 

• Lack of diversified product portfolio, dependence on single product 

• Major Raw Materials & Components (RM&Cs) are not available in the Country. Needs increased technical efforts to 
develop indigenous sources for supply of import substitutes for RM&Cs. 

• Maintaining continuous updation of technology 
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(. Opportunities: 

• Growing Defence and Security needs 

BELOP 

• Potential Market for High Performance 1 . 1 .  Tubes for minimum 5-6 Years considering enhanced Defence and 
internal Security needs ofthe Country. 

• Increased impetus on modernization of central paramil itary forces 

• Opportunities for diversification in new and related areas due to Government's emphasis on Atmanirbhar Bharat 

• Offset Business opportunities 

(. Threats : 

• Increasing competition from Private players 

• Customers preference for higher specification I I  Tubes 

• Rapid changes in night vision technology resulting in low prices of uncooled thermal imagers 

• Policy interventions favouring Private sector 

c) Major initiatives undertaken and planned to ensure sustained performance and growth: 

i) Technology updation and R & D  

BELOP has commenced supply of XD-4 1 . 1 .  Tubes through in-depth manufacturing to it's customers from 
December 2014 onwards. The company is also making efforts for upgradation of its manufacturing & Test 
Infrastructure through inhouse R & D. In order to meetthe requirements offurtherenhanced performance Tubes by 
the Indian Army, the Company has entered, into a ToT Agreement with MIs Photonis France SAS, France and their 
Sister Company, MIs Imaging Sensors International, France for the manufacture XR-5 1 . 1 .  Tubes during May 2014.  
The XR-5 project is nearing completion. 

The Company is also making systematic efforts to diversify into associated I new products to increase the Sales I 
reduce the risk of incurring fixed expenditure during the period of non-receipt I delayed receipt of Customer Orders. 

ii) Diversification 

As part of the diversification process, the company has entered into an Offset Contract with MIs Rosoboronexport, 
Russia for manufacture of aviation hoses and as per the terms of the Offset Contract the technology would be 
provided by MIs Rosoboronexport. The project is under implementation. 

d) Specific Measures on Risk Management. Cost Reduction and Indigenisation 

i) Risk Management 

The Company has an established Risk Management Policy, which outlines a framework for risk identification, 
evaluation, prioritization and treatment of various risks associated with different areas of operation such as 
technology, product, market, human resources, finance and other operations. The company has put in place a 
comprehensive 'Risk Management Framework' for the continuous identification, updation ,  evaluation ,  prioritization 
and management of risks. Under this framework, at Apex Level there is Risk Management Committee(RMC) 
headed by the Chief Executive Officer(BELOP) and members drawn from important functional areas like 
manufacturing, Marketing, Design and Engineering, Finance and HR. 

The Risk Champion (RC) is at the level of Sr. DGM. The RMC reviews the risk management efforts in the company 
as a whole on a quarterly basis. The RMC submits quarterly report to the management and the Audit Committee. 
The company reports about the status of RM to the Board annually. 

Certain risks which have been identified are being addressed by introducing suitable Risk mitigation processes. 
Similarly, in case of any key managerial decisions the risk factors are highlighted for the decision making authority 
to take informed decision. 
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ii) Cost Reduction and Indigenisation 

BELOP 

The company's Cost Reduction activities focus both on manufacturing and non-manufacturing areas and 
encompass all facets of business like production, administration, finance, services etc. The company has carried 
out various activities in manufacturing and sub-contract area which has resulted in increase in the quality and 
productivity and in consequent cost reduction . 

B) Internal Control System and it's adequacy 

The company has an adequate system of Internal Control commensurate with it's size and nature of it's operations. These 
have been designed to provide measures with a view to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and 
providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable statues, safeguarding assets from 
unauthorised use or losses, executing transactions with proper authorisation and ensuring compliance of company's 
policies and procedures issued from time to time. 

The internal audit of the company forthe year 2021 -22 was conducted by the internal audit team of BEL. 

Your company has an Audit Committee which reviews the Internal Control Systems and the significant audit observations 
submitted by the internal audit. The Audit Committee meets the company's Statutory Auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their 
views on the financial statements, including the financial reporting system, compliance to accounting policies and 
procedures, the adequacy and effectiveness ofthe internal control systems followed by the company. The adequacy of the 
Internal Control procedures is reviewed and reported by the Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report. BELOP being a 
Government Company is subject to audit by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

C) Financial/Operational Performance 

1 .  Strategy & Objectives 

The main objectives of the financing strategy ofthe company are as follows:-

(i) To make available funds by effective cash flow management with a view to have least borrowing and consequently 
least interest cost; 

(ii) To maintain the highest credit rating in the short term to be able to raise funds at most economical rates as and when 
required; 

(iii) To effectively execute tax planning thereby improving the post tax yield; 

(iv) To meet the expectations of the various stakeholders; 

(v) To maintain highest standards of financial reporting by following the mandatory accounting standards 

Each ofthe objectives l isted continue to be accorded the highest priority by BELOP. During the financial year, the company 
made efforts to fund the working capital needs and the funding for capital expenditure from the internal resources and there 
was no borrowing for working capital from banks. The company also repaid the outstanding loan availed from the holding 
company for the XR5 project. 

2. Performance Highlights 

Particulars 

Gross Sales 

Total Expenditure Before Financing Costs 

Profit Before Financing Costs and Tax 

Operating Margin(PBIT/Gross Sales} Ratio% 

Profit After Tax 

No.of Days InventoryNalue of Production(DPE Method} 

No. of Days Trade ReceivablesfTurnover 

Current Ratio 

Debt Equity Ratio 
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2021 -22 2020-21 

4586 4075 

5242 51 68 

538 785 

1 7.25 1 9.26 

51 6 490 

292 371 

7 78 

2.46 1 .97 

- -
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3. Analysis of Financial performance of2021-22 

• Turnover increased by 1 2.54% from � 4,075 Lakhs in 2020-21 to � 4,586 Lakhs in 2021 -22. 

BELOP 

• Value of Production has increased by � 714 1akhs from � 3,576 Lakhs in 2020-21 to � 4,290 Lakhs in 2021 -22. 

• PAT has increased by 5.31 % from � 490 Lakhs in 2020-21 to � 51 6 Lakhs in 2021 -22. 

• PATto Turnover Ratio in 2021 -22 is 1 1 .25%. 

• Turnover per Employee has increased by 1 6.67% from � 30 Lakhs in 2020-21 to � 35 Lakhs in 2021 -22. 

• Earnings per share is � 0.61 

• Net worth has grown by 1 .58% from � 24,052 Lakhs in 2020-21 to � 24,432 Lakhs in 2021 -22 

D) Development in Human Resources 

The company has provided training on technical and quality related topics of total 1 1 4. 1 3  mandays amounting to an 
average of 0.88 mandays per employee. 

E) Accounting for intangible assets 

a. Intangible assets 

The intangible assets of � 9,676 lakhs shown under Non-Current Assets in the Balance Sheet (Note No.3) consists of 
License Fees of � 9,674 lakhs incurred for the XD-4 project. These license fees are being amortised over a period of 
1 5  years (Term of the License Agreement). The XD-4 project was funded by the MoD, to the extent of 74.30 % . As per the 
company's accounting policy grants from government are measured at fair value and initially recognised as Deferred 
Income. The amount lying in Deferred Income is transferred each year to the credit of Statement of Profit and Loss in 
proportion to the depreciation/amortisation charged on the respective assets in the ratio of the funding to the total 
sanctioned cost limited to the government grant received. 

b. Intangible assets under development 

The intangible assets of � 8,565 lakhs under development showing under Non-Current Assets in the Balance Sheet 
(Note No.4) consists of License Fees of the XR-5 project. The XR-5 project is in the final stages of completion and the 
same would be capital ised and amortised over the period ofthe XR-5Agreement. 
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Annexure No. 7 to the Board's Report 

BOARD'S REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021 -22 

1 . Brief outline on CSR Policy ofthe Company:-

i )  BELOP recognises it's role and responsibil ity as a corporate entity and constantly endeavours to actively participate in the 
social and economic development ofthe communities in which it operates through CSR initiatives. 

ii) BELOP is committed to its stakeholders to conduct CSR activities in  an economically, socially and environmentally 
sustainable manner that is transparent and ethical. 

i i i) CSR activities shall include initiatives which aim at achieving sustainable development goals. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee :-

SI. 
NO. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Name of Director 

Mrs.Anandi Ramalingam 

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra 

Mr. M.V. Rajasekhar(w.e.f.30.07.2021 )  

Mr.Shivakumaran K M(upto 30.08.202 1 )  

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR 
Committee, CSR policy and CSR projects approved by 
The board are disclosed on the website ofthe company. 

Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR 
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 
Ofthe Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) 
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). 

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance 
Of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibil ity Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount 
Required for set off for the financial year, if any 

Designation I 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

Member 

SI.NO. Financial Year 
Amount available for 

set-off from preceding 
(in �) financial year (in �) 

1 .  2021 -22 Nil 

TOTAL Nil 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 1 35(5) :-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit ofthe company as 
Per section 1 35(5):-

(b) Surplus arising out ofthe CSR projects or 
Programmes or activities of the previous financial years. 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7 a+ 7b-7 c) 
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Number of Number of 
meeting of CSR meeting of CSR 
Committee held Committee 
during the year attended during 

the year 

5 5 

5 5 

3 2 

3 3 

https:/Iwww.belop-india. in 

Not Applicable 

Nil 

Amount required to be 
set-off for the financial year, 

if any (in �) 

Nil 

Nil 

� 9,49,47,735/-

� 1 8,98,955/-

Nil 

Nil 

� 1 8,98,955/-
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Amount Unspe nt (in �) 

BELOP 

Total Amount Total Amount transfe rred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Spent for the U nspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

Financial Year. section 1 35 (6). section 1 35(5). 

(in �) Amount Date of transfe r  Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfe r  

1 6,38,767 18,98,955 27.04.2022 - - -

(b) Detai ls of CSR amount Spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:-

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (1 1 )  

SI. Name Item Local Location Project Amount Amount Amount Mode Mode of 
No. of the from the area of the dura- allocated spent in transfe- of Implementation 

project list of (Yes/ project tion for the the rred to Imple- through 
activities No) project current Unspent menta- Implementing 

in (in �) financial CSR tion Agency 
schedule Year Account Direct 
VII to the (in �) for the (Yes/ 

Act project as No) Name CSR 
per Registra 

State District Section tion 
135(6) number 
(in �) 

1 .  Constr- Promoting Yes Mahara Pune 3 yrs 78,84,644 1 6,38,767 62,45,578 Yes Not Not 
uction of Educa- shtra Appli- Appli-
Primary tion cable cable 
School 

2.  Health- 6,1 8,889 - 6,1 8,889 
care 

Project 

TOTAL 85,03,533 1 6,38,767 68,64,766 

(c) Detai ls of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects :­
for the financial year 

Not Applicable 

(1)  

SI. 
NO 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

Name of the Item from the Local Location of the Amount 
Project list of activities area project. spent for 

in schedule VII (Yes/No) the project 
to the Act (in �) 

State District 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads 

Not Applicable 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 
(8b+8c+8d+8e) 
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Nil 

Not applicable 

Ni l  

(7) (8) 

Mode of Mode of 
implement implementation 

ation through 
Direct implementing 

(Yes/No) agency 

Name CSR 
registrati 

on 
number 
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(g) Excess amount for set-off, if any 

BELOP 

Nil 

51. NO. Particular Amount (in �) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit ofthe company as per section 1 35(5) 1 8,98,955 

(ii) Total amount spent for the financial Year 

(iii) Excess amount spentforthe financial year [(i i )-(i)] 

(iv) Surplus arising out ofthe CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(i i i)-(iv)] 

9. (a) Detai ls of Unspent CSR amountforthe preceding three financial years: 

Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund 
51. NO. Financial transferred to in the reporting specified under Schedule VII as per 

Year Unspent CSR Financial Year section 135(6), if any. 
Account under (in �) 

Name of the Amount Date of section 135 (6) 
(in �) fund (in �) transfer 

1 .  2018-1 9  1 5,69,677 1 5,69,677 Not Applicable Ni l  -

2.  201 9-20 27,43,625 69,090 Not Applicable Ni l  -

3 2020-21 22,91 ,276 - Not Applicable Ni l  -

TOTAL 66,04,578 1 6,38,767 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 
(in �) 

Nil 

26,74,535 

22,91 ,276 

49,65,811 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of preceding Financial years(s):-

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

51. Project Name of Financial Project Total 
No. 10 the Year duration amount 

Project in which allocated 
the for the 

project was project 
commenced (in �) 

1 .  Construction 201 8-1 9  3 years 78,84,644 
of primary 
school 

TOTAL 78,84,644 

1 0. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details 
relating to the Asset so created or acquired through CSR spent 
in the financial year(asset-wise-details) :-

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 

(c) Details ofthe entity or public authority or benefiCiary under 
Whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details ofthe capital asset (s) created or acquired 
(including complete address and location of the capital asset). 
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(7) (8) 

Amount Cumulative 
spent on amount spent 

the project at the end of 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year 
(in �) 

1 6,38,767 

16,38,767 

reporting 
Financial Year 

(in �) 

1 6,38,767 

1 6,38,767 

NotApplicable 

NotApplicable 

NotApplicable 

NotApplicable 

NotApplicable 

(9) 

Status of the 
project -

Completedl 
Ongoing 

Ongoing 
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1 1 .  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent ofthe average net profit as per Section 1 35(5). 

The company failed to spend the two percent of the average profit as there was a delay in construction of the school. The 
construction of the school has been completed in June 2022 and after complection of the formalities the school would be 
handed over to the Gram Panchayat authorities in July 2022. The earmarked funds are being util ised in 2022-23. The 
health care project for supply of medical and other related equipments was taken up in March 2022 after obtaining 
necessary approvals. The same is expected to be completed by September 2022 and the funds would be utilised 
in 2022-23. 

Place :  - Bengaluru 
Date: - 26th July 2022 

Sd/-

DCN Srinivasa Rao 
(Chief Executive Office) 
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Sd/-

Anandi Ramalingam 
(Chairman CSR Committee) 
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Annexure No.8 to the Board's Report 

Information required to be disclosed in accordance with Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 201 3 read with Rule 
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo. 

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

i) Energy conservation measures taken during the year 2021 -22. 

During the year the company has Installed Online Energy Monitoring Software to Monitor Department wise Energy 
Consumption .  

During the Year the Company conducted Electrical Power Quality Audit. 

ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy 

During the year the company has not taken any steps for utilising alternate sources of energy. 

i i i) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments. 

During the year there has been no capital investment on energy conservation equipments. 

B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

I) Efforts, In brief, made towards Technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation 

(. The ToT Project on manufacture of XR-5 Tubes is nearing completion. The major ToT Milestones have been 
achieved 

ii) Benefits derived as a result ofthe above efforts 

.:. Commencement of implementation of indigenous manufacturing technology for del ivery of high performance 1 . 1 .  
Tubes, Type XR-5, to the Customers. 

(+ Upgradation of Infrastructure for better productivity, process consistency, and process data traceabil ity, resulting in 
overall Customer satisfaction and extending the l ife ofthe existing Assets 

i i i) Information regarding technology imported during the last three years 

In  order to meet the requirements offurther enhanced performance Tubes by the Indian Army, the Company has entered 
during May 2014, into incremental ToT Agreement with MIs Photon is France SAS, France and their Sister Company, MIs 
Imaging Sensors International, France for the manufacture XR-5 1 . 1 .  Tubes. The XR-5 project is nearing completion. 

iv) Expenditure on R&D 

The Company has incurred an expenditure of approx. � 1 3.88 Lakhs during the year 2021 -22. 

C FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO 

No disclosure of the foreign exchange earning and outgo is furnished on account of the notification received from the 
Government of India, Ministry of Company Affairs. 
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Ind AS Fi nancial Statements - 31 March 2022 

Ind AS Financial Statements 
• Balance Sheet 
• Statement of Profit and Loss 
• Statenlent of Cash Flows 
• Statement of Changes in Equity 
• Notes to the Financial Statements 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31 J 2022 � in Lakhs 
Sr. Particulars Note As at As at 
No. No. 31"1 March 2022 3111 March. 2021 

ASSETS 
(1) Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 5,241 5,944 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 5,1 51 5,090 
(c) Other Intangible assets 3 9,676 1 0 ,925 
(d) Intangible assets under development 4 8,565 8,564 
(e) Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 5 - -
(ii) Loans 6 - -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 7 1 42 58 

(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 21 - -
(g) Inventories 8 - -
(h) Other Non-Current Assets 9 598 588 
Sub Total Non-Current Assets «a) to (h» 29,373 31 ,169 

(2) Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 1 0  3,430 3,639 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 1 1  97 1 ,031 
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 1 2  3,451 1 ,492 
(iii) Bank Balances (other than (ii) above) 1 3  278 330 
(iv) Other Financial Assets 1 4  22 29 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 1 5  - 2 1 8  
(d) Other Current Assets 1 6  1 64 1 1 4  
Sub Total Current Assets «a) to (d» 7,442 6,853 
TOTAL ASSETS 36 815 38 022 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
(a) Equity Share Capital 1 7  8,451 8,451 
(b) Other Equity 1 5 981 1 5 601 
Sub Total Equity «a) + (b» 24 432 24 052 
LIABILITIES 

(1 ) Non-Current Liabil ities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 1 8  - -
(b) Government Grants-deferred 1 9  8,691 1 0,006 
(c) Provisions 20 521 459 
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 21 1 45 36 
Sub Total Non-Current Liabilities «a) to (d» 9,357 10 501 

(2) Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 22 - 378 
(ii) Trade Payables 24 

A) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 49 1 39 
B) Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 2 1 0  249 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 25 1 45 346 
(b) Government Grants-deferred 23 1 ,3 1 5  1 ,3 1 5  
(c) Other Current Liabil ities 26 433 262 
(d) Provisions 27 805 780 
(e) Current Tax Liability (Net) 28 69 -
Sub Total Current Liabil ities «a) to (e» 3,026 3,469 
Sub Total Liabilities (1 +2) 12,383 13,970 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36.815 38,022 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
As per our report attached 
PRASS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants sd/- sd/- sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 1 0781 6 WIW 1 00222 ANANDI RAMALINGAM DI NESH KUMAR BATRA M. V. RAJASEKHAR 

Chairman Director Director 
sd/-

A.I INKYA RANADIVE 
Partner sd/- sd/- sd/-

MEM. NO. 148962 DCN SRINIVASA RAO P. SARKAR PRIYA. S. IYER 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Pune Place : Bengaluru 
Date : 1 9th May 2022 Date: 1 6th May, 2022 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 � in Lakhs 

Sr. Note As at As at 
No. Particulars No. 31"1 March, 2022 3101 March 2021 
I Revenue from operations 29 5,921 5,880 

I I  Other income 30 1 1 2  73 

I I I  Total Income (1+11) 6,033 5,953 

IV Expenses 

(a) Cost of materials consumed 31 1 , 1 46 1 ,078 

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, 32 81 456 

stock-in -trade and work-in-progress 

(c) Employee benefit expense 33 1 ,482 1 ,223 

(d) Finance costs 34 22 73 

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 1 ,996 1 ,999 

(f) Technical Assistance Fee 36 - -

(g) Other expenses 37 537 412  

Total expenses (IV) «a) to (g» 5,264 5,241 

V Profit before exceptional items and tax (III -IV) 769 712 

VI Exceptional items - -

VI I Profit before tax (V-VI) 769 712 

VI I I  Tax expense: 

(i) Current tax 324 67 

(i i) Earlier Year Taxes 6 -

(i i i) Deferred tax (77) 1 55 

Total Tax Expenses (i+ii+iii) 253 222 

IX Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 51 6 490 

(X) Other Comprehensive Income 

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 1 5  (64) 

( i i) Income tax effect on the above (4) 1 8  

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (A + B) 1 1  (46) 
(XI) Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X) (Comprising 

Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 527 444 

(XI I )  Earning per equity share 

(1 ) Basic 
38(1 ) 

0.61 0.58 

(2) Diluted 0.61 0.58 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

As per our report attached 
PRASS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 1 0781 6 W/W 1 00222 ANANDI RAMALINGAM 

sd/­
AJINKYA RANADIVE 
Partner 
MEM. NO. 1 48962 

Place: Pune 
Date : 1 9th May 2022 

Chairman 

sd/-
DCN SRINIVASA RAO 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Director 

sd/­
P. SARKAR 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date: 1 6th May, 2022 

sd/-
M. V. RAJASEKHAR 
Director 

sd/-
PRIYA. S. IYER 
Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE PERIOD 01.04.2021 TO 31.03.2022 � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at 
31"1 March 2022 3111 March 2021 

Cash Flow From Operating Activities 
Profit before tax 769 712  
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation & amortisation expense 1 ,996 1 ,999 
Interest Income (1 00) (71 ) 
Finance costs 22 73 
Amortisation of government grants-deferred (1 ,31 5) (1 ,31 5) 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 1 5  (64) 
Adjustment for Fair Valuation of Loan (1 ) 1 9  
Change I n  Operating Assets And Liabilities 
( Increase) !decrease in trade receivables 934 (957) 
( Increase) !decrease in inventories 21 0 584 
Increase !(decrease) in trade payables (1 30) (1 50) 
Increase !(decrease) in other financial liabilities (20 1 )  (1 03) 
( Increase)! decrease in other financial assets (77) 44 
( Increase) !decrease in other non current assets (1 0) ( 1 1  ) 
( Increase) !decrease in other current assets (51 ) 255 
Increase !(decrease) in provisions 86 (1 ,046) 
Increase!(decrease) in other current liabilites 1 71 2 1 8  
Cash flow from/ (used) i n  operations 2,3 1 8  1 87 
Income taxes paid 1 29 1 7  
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items - -

Net Cash flow from /(used) In operating activities (A) 2,447 204 
Cash Flow From Investing Activities : 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1 05) (26) 
Intangibles Assets under Development (1 ) (51 ) 
Investment in Term Deposits 52 (65) 
Interest received 1 00 71 
Net cash inflow from/ (used) in from investing activities (B) 46 (71 )  
Cash Flow From Financing Activities 
Proceeds!(Repayment) from borrowings- Term Loan (379) (1 ,266) 
Finance Costs (22) (73) 
Dividend Paid (Net of TDS) (1 33) (84) 
Proceeds from issue of shares - 1 57 
Net cash inflow from/(used) in financing activities (C) (534) (1 ,266) 
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents «A)+(B)+(C» 1 ,959 (1 , 1 33) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 1 ,492 2,625 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,451 1 ,492 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as {ler Cash flow statement 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of following : 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1 2) 3,451 1 ,492 
Balance as per statement of cash flows 3,451 1 ,492 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOMPANYING NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 
As per our report attached 
PRASS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants sd/- sd/- sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 1 0781 6 WIW 1 00222 ANANDI RAMALINGAM DI NESH KUMAR BATRA M. V. RAJASEKHAR 

Chairman Director Director 
sd/-

AJINKYA RANADIVE 
Partner sd/- sd/- sd/-

MEM. NO. 148962 DCN SRINIVASA RAO P. SARKAR PRIYA. S. IYER 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Pune Place : Bengaluru 
Date : 1 9th May 2022 Date: 1 6th May, 2022 

36 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL � in Lakhs 

Balance as on Note Changes in equity Restated balance at Changes in equity Balance 
01 .04.2021 No capital due the beginning of the sharecapital during as on 

to prior period current reporting period the current year 31 .03.2022 

No.of ShareslAmount No. of Sharesl Amount No. of Sharesl Amount No. of Shares I Amount No. of Sharesl Amount 
8.45,06,970 I 8,451 1 7  - I - 8,45.06,970 I 8.451 - I - 8.45,06,970 I 8.451 

Balance as on Note Changes in equity Restated balance at Changes in equity 
Balance as on 01 .04.2020 No capital due the beginning of the sharecapital during 

to prior period current reporting period the current year 31 .03.2021 

No.of Shares/Amount No. of Shares/ Amount No. of Shares/ Amount No. of Shares / Amount No. of Shares/ Amount 
8,38,62,590 I 8,386 1 7  - I - 8,38,62,590 I 8,386 6,44,380 I 64 8,45,06,970 I 8,451 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
As at 31'1 March, 2022 � i n  Lakhs 

Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Other Total 
Particulars Note Securities Retained Comprehensive Reserves Equity 

No Premium Earnings Income 

Balance as on 1 st April 2021 8,971 6,857 (454) 227 1 5,601 
Issue of Equity Shares during the year - - - - -

Profit for the year - 51 6 - - 51 6 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 1 1  - 1 1  
(net of tax) 
Capital Contribution on account of below - - - - -

market rate borrowings 
Balance as at 31 st March 2022 8,971 7,373 (443) 227 1 6,128 
Dividends 1 7  - (147) - - (147) 
Balance as at 31' March 2022 8,971 7,226 (443) 227 1 5,981 

Capital Contribution on account of below market rate borrowings includes � 31 ,3301- which is rounded off. 
As at 31'1 March, 2021 � in Lakhs 

Note 
Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Other Total 

Particulars Securities Retained Comprehensive Reserves Equity No 
Premium Earnings Income 

Balance as on 1 st April 2020 8,879 6,458 (408) 2 1 3  15 , 142 
Issue of Equity Shares during the year 92 - - - 92 
Profit for the year - 490 - - 490 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (46) - (46) 
(net of tax) 
Capital Contribution on account of below - - - 1 4  1 4  
market rate borrowinQs 
Balance as at 31st March 2021 8,971 6,948 (454) 227 1 5,692 
Dividends 1 7  - (91 ) . - (91 )  
Balance as at 31st March 2021 8,971 6,857 (454) 227 1 5,601 

1 .  The Securities Premium would be utilised as mandated under the Companies Act, 201 3. 
2.  The Retained Earnings are Free Reserves of the Company. 
Significant Accounting Policies and Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

As per our report attached 
PRASS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 1 0781 6  W/W 1 00222 ANANDI RAMALINGAM 

sd/­
A.I INKYA RANADIVE 
Partner 
MEM. NO. 1 48962 

Place: Pune 
Date : 1 9'" May 2022 

Chairman 

sd/-
DCN SRINIVASA RAO 
Chief Executive Officer 
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sd/­
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Chief Financial Officer 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BELOP 

The accompanying financial statements comprise the financial statements of BEL Optronic Devices Ltd . ,  Pune (BELOP) (the 
Company). The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Pune, Maharashtra. The Company is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Bharat Electronics Limited (BEL). The Company is engaged in manufacture of Image Intensifier Tubes and 
associated high voltage Power Supply Units for use in defence system. 

1 .  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 
India (GAAP), on the accrual basis of accounting. GAAP comprises the mandatory Indian Accounting Standards (lnd-AS) 
[as notified under Section 1 33 ofthe Companies Act, 201 3 read Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 201 5], to the extent applicable, the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3  and these have been consistently 
applied. 

2 USE OF ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP, requires that the management makes estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabil ity as at the date of 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although such estimates 
are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all available information, actual results could differ from 
these estimates and such differences are recognised in the period in which the results are ascertained. 

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which 
have been measured atfairvalue: 

1 .  Derivative financial instruments, if any 

2. Financial assets and liabilities those are qualified to be measured at fair value. 

3. The defined benefit asseUliabil ity is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of 
plan assets. 

4. FUNCTIONALAND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ( INR) which is the functional and the presentation currency of the 
Company. 

5 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS-

i. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods or 
services (Le., an Asset) to a Customer. 

i i .  Satisfaction of performance obligation at a point in time 

a. The company recognises the revenue at a point in time when it satisfies the performance obligations. 

b. The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains control ofthe asset. The indicators for transfer of control 
include the following: 

• the company has transferred physical possession ofthe asset 
• the customer has legal title to the asset 
• the customer has accepted the asset 
• when the company has a present right to payment for the asset 
• the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. The transfer of significant risks and rewards 

ownership is assessed based on the Inco- terms of the contracts. 
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Ex-Works contract - In case of Ex-works contract, revenue is recognised when the specified goods are unconditionally 
appropriated to the contract after prior Inspection and acceptance, if required. 

FOR Contracts - In the case of FOR contracts, revenue is recognised when the goods are handed over to the carrier for 
transmission to the buyer after prior inspection and acceptance, if stipulated, and in the case of FOR destination contracts, if there 
is a reasonable expectation ofthe goods reaching destination within the accounting period . 

c. Bill and hold Sales 
Bill and hold sales are recognised when all the following criteria are met : 

• the reason for the bill and hold sales is substantive 
• the product is identified separately as belonging to the customer 
• the product is currently ready for physical transfer to the customer 
• the company does not have the ability to use the product orto direct it to another customer 

i i i . Measurement 

a. Revenue is recognized atthe amount ofthe transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. 

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties. 

In case of price escalation and ERV revenue is recognised at most l ikely amount to be realised from customer in line with 
contractual terms. 

b. Penalties 

Penalties (including levy of liquidated damages for delay in delivery) specified in a contract are not treated as an inherent 
part ofTransaction Price if the levy of same is subject to review by the customer. 

c. Significant financing component 

Advances received towards execution of Defence related projects are not considered for determining significant financing 
component since the objective is to protect the interest of the contracting parties. 

In respect of other contracts, the existence of significant financing component is reviewed on a case to case basis. 

B. OTHER INCOME 

Recognition of other income is as fol lows 

i .  Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 

i i . Other Income 

Other income not specifically stated above is recognised on accrual basis. 

i i i  Duty Drawbacks 

Duty drawback claims on exports are accounted on accrual basis 

6. INVENTORIES 

(i) Raw materials, stores & spares and goods in transit have been valued at lower of cost and net realisable value and 
Cost of material is determined on weighted average basis. 

(ii) Work-in-Progress has been valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes materials, direct 
labour and appropriate overheads. 

(ii i )  Finished Goods have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value 
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7. DEPRECIATION IAMORTISATION 

DEPRECIATION 

BELOP 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Company, based on 
technical assessments made by technical experts and Management estimates the useful life of the assets in the manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 201 3. The Management believes that these estimated useful l ives are 
realistic and reflectfair approximation ofthe period over which the assets are l ikely to be used. 

Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to total cost of the asset and estimated useful life of that part is different from 
the estimated useful life of the remaining asset, estimated useful l ife of that significant part is determined separately and 
the significant part is depreciated on straight-line method over its estimated useful life. The residual values, useful l ives 
and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

Depreciation on certain items of Plant & Machinery is charged over the estimated useful l ife which are different from the 
useful life prescribed in Schedule I I  to the CompaniesAct, 2013 .  

AMORTISATION 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the straight line method over their estimated useful 
l ives and is generally recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. Amortisation methods, useful l ives are reviewed at each 
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

8. DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
property, plant & equipment (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any and the carrying 
amount of the property, plant & equipment ) is included in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the property, plant & 
equipment is derecognised. 

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

(i) All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the related services are classified as short 
term employee benefits and they mainly include 

(a) Wages & Salaries; (b) Short-term compensated absences; (c) Incentives and bonuses which are valued on 
undiscounted basis and recognised during the period in which the related services are rendered. 

(ii) Incremental liability for payment of long term compensated absences such as Annual Leave is determined as the 
difference between present value of the obligation determined annually on actuarial basis using Projected Unit 
Credit method and the carrying value of the provision contained in the balance sheet and provided for. 

(ii i )  Defined contribution to Employee Provident Fund and Pension Scheme are made on a monthly accrual basis at the 
applicable rates. Defined contribution to Superannuation Scheme is made on yearly basis at the applicable rates. 

(iv) Gratuity: Incremental liability for payment of gratuity to employees is determined as the difference between present 
value of the obligation determined annually on actuarial basis using Projected Unit Credit Method and the fair value 
of plan assets funded in an approved trust set up for the purpose forwhich lumpsum contribution are made. 

(v) Actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect ofthe asset cei ling (if any, 
excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).  Net interest expense 
(income) on the net defined liabil ity (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net 
defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of 
contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined 
benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to 
past service orthe gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit & Loss. 
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1 0. INCOME TAXES 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. 

(i) CURRENT INCOME TAX 

BELOP 

Current tax assets and liabil ities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date. Current tax relating to items recognised directly other comprehensive income or i n  equity is 
recognised in other comprehensive income or respectively not in  the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit & Loss is recognised outside Statement of Profit & 
Loss. 

(i i) DEFERRED TAX 

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabil ities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to al low all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised. 

1 1 .  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective currency exchange rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency exchange rate at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of 
monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the functional currency exchange rate at the dates ofthe initial transactions. 

12. FORWARD CONTRACTS 

Derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, use for hedging foreign currency risk are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabil ities when the fair 
value is negative. 

1 3. BORROWING COSTS 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. General 
borrowing costs are capitalised to qualifying assets by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditure on that asset. The 
capitalisation rate is the weighted average ofthe borrowing costs applicable to general borrowings outstanding, other than 
specific borrowings. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN-PROGRESS 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. 

Cost for this purpose includes all attributable costs for bringing the asset to its location and condition. The present value of 
the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset, if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met. 
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CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use as at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital work-in­
progress. 

Capital work-in-progress comprises supply-cum-erection contracts, the value of capital supplies received at site and 
accepted, capital goods in transit and under inspection and the cost of Property, Plant and equipment that are not yet ready 
for their intended use as at the balance sheet date. 

1 5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 

The cost of l icense fee, technical know how etc acquired for transfer of technology resulting in significant future economic 
benefits is recognised as an Intangible Asset in the books of accounts when the same is ready for use. Intangible Assets 
that are not yet ready for their intended use as at the Balance Sheet date are classified as "Intangible Assets under 
Development" . 

Cost of Developmental work which is completed, wherever eligible, is recognised as an Intangible Asset. 

Cost of Developmental work under progress, wherever eligible, is classified as "Intangible Assets under Development". 

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated amortisation and cumulative 
impairment losses, if any. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or 
disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition of intangible assets, if any, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

1 6. EXPENDITURE ON TECHNICAL KNOW HOW 

Expenditure incurred on technical know-how is charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss on incurrence unless it qual ifies 
for recognition as an Intangible Asset /Part of Tangible Assets either separately on its own or in combination with other 
assets / expenses. 

1 7. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE 

(i) Expenditure on Research activity is recognized as an expense in the period when it is incurred. 

(ii) Development expenditure (other than on specific development- cum sales contracts and Developmental, projects 
initiated at customer's request), is charged off as expenditure when incurred .  Developmental expenditure on 
development -cum -sale contracts and on Developmental projects initiated at customer's request are treated at par 
with other sales contracts. 

Developmental projects are reviewed periodically and the amount carried forward, if any, is charged off in the event 
ofthe project being declared closed by the customer/end user without any commitment to place order. 

(ii i )  Expenditure incurred towards other developmental activity (including joint developmental activity in collaboration 
with external agencies ) where the research results or other knowledge is applied for developing new or improved 
products or processes, are recognised as an Intangible Asset if the recognition criteria specified in IND-AS 38 are 
met and when the product or process developed is expected to be technically and commercially usable, the 
company has sufficient resources to complete development and subsequently use or sell the intangible asset, and 
the product or process is l ikely to generate future economic benefits. 

(iv) R&D expenditure on Fixed Assets is capitalised. 

1 8. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Grants from Government are measured atfairvalue and initially recognized as Deferred Income. 

The amount lying in Deferred Income on account of acquisition of Fixed Assets is transferred to the credit of Statement of 
Profit & Loss in proportion to the depreciation charged on the respective assets to the extent attributable to Government 
Grants utilised forthe acquisition. 
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The amount lying in Deferred Income on account of Revenue Expenses is transferred to the credit of Statement of Profit & 
loss to the extent of expenditure incurred in the ratio of the funding to the total sanctioned cost, limited to the Government 
grant received. 

1 9. FINANCIAL ASSETS 

INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are included in the cost of the 
asset. 

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
Debt instruments at amortised cost, 
Debt instruments at fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), 
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPl), 
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI . 

DERECOGNITION 

A financial asset or part of a financial asset is derecognised. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. 

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value, which in most cases approximates the nominal value. If there is any 
subsequent indication thatthose assets may be impaired, they are reviewed for impairment. 

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash,  which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts, if any, are classified as borrowings under current liabilities in the 
Balance Sheet. 

21 .  IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIALASSETS 

In accordance with Ind-AS 1 09, the Company applies the expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets with credit risk exposure. 

a .  Time barred dues from the government / government departments / government companies are generally not 
considered as increase in credit risk of such financial asset. 

b Where dues are disputed in legal proceedings, provision is made if any decision is given against the Company even 
ifthe same is taken up on appeal to higher authorities / courts. 

c. Dues outstanding for significant period oftime are reviewed and provision is made on a case to case basis. 
Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognised as expense/(income) in the Statement of Profit or loss. 

22. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(i) INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 

Financial liabilities are classified , at initial recognition, at fair value through profit or loss as loans, borrowings, 
payables, or derivatives, as appropriate. 

loans, borrowings and payables, are stated net of transaction costs that are directly attributable. 
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(ii) SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 

The measurement offinancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities atfairvalue through profit or loss. 

Financial liabil ities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 
at fair value through profit or loss. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined in Ind-AS 1 09. 
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

(iii) LOANS AND BORROWINGS 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the Effective Interest Rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabil ities are 
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortisation process. A financial liabi lity is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liabil ity is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

(iv) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Liabil ities are recognised for amounts to be paid in future for goods or services received ,  whether billed by the 
supplier or not. 

23. RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no 
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which 
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. If 
the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively. 

24. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

25. LEASES 

Company as a Lessee:-

Contracts with third party, which give the company the right of use in respect of an Asset, are accounted in line with the 
provisions of IndAS 1 1 6  - Leases, ifthe recognition criteria as specified in the Accounting standard are met. 

Lease payments associated with Short terms leases and Leases in respect of Low value assets are charged off as 
expenses on straight l ine basis over lease term or other systematic basis, as applicable. 

At commencement date, the value of "right of use" is capitalised at the present value of outstanding lease payments plus 
any initial direct cost and estimated cost, if any, of dismantling and removing the underlying asset and presented as part of 
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent measurement of right-of-use asset is made using Cost model 

Liabil ity for lease is created for an amount equivalent to the present value of outstanding lease payments and presented as 
Borrowing. 

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability created and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the 
Statement of Profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 
balance ofthe liability for each period. 
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The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorterofthe asset's useful l ife and the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the 
company's incremental borrowing rate. 

Lease modifications, if any, are accounted as a separate lease ifthe recognition criteria specified in the standard are met. 

26. CASH DIVIDENDAND NON-CASH DISTRIBUTION TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 

The Company recognises a liabi lity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is 
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. 

27. PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES 

Provision for Expenditure on account of performance guarantee and replacement / repair of goods sold is made on the 
basis of trend based estimates. 

In cases where a trend is not ascertainable, provision for warranty is made based on the best estimate of management. 

28. PROVISIONS 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made ofthe amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the Statement of Profit & Loss net of any reimbursement. 

Ifthe effect ofthe time value of money is material, provisions are d iscounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabil ity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage oftime is recognized as a finance cost. 

i i .  A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a 
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured 
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of 
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the 
assets associated with that contract. 

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/ASSETS 

Contingent Liabilities/Assets to the extent the Management is aware, are disclosed by way of notes to the financial 
statements. 

30. CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS-7 on Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end ofthe reporting period . The 
financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue. Non-adjusting events are events that are 
indicative of conditions that arose after the end ofthe reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are not 
accounted, but disclosed. 
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32. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

BELOP 

The Company presents basic and di luted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted earnings per share is 
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held , for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

33. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS: 

The assessmentforthe impairment of assets is done with reference to the Company [Cash Generating Unit (CGU)] at each 
Balance Sheet date if events or changes in circumstances, based on internal and external factors, indicate that the carrying 
value may not be recoverable in ful l .  The loss on account of impairment, which is the difference between the carrying 
amount and recoverable amount, is accounted accordingly. Recoverable amount of a CGU is its Net Selling Price or Value 
in use whichever is higher. The value in use is arrived at on the basis of estimated future cash flows discounted at 
company's pre-tax borrowing rate. 

34. ERRORS AND ESTIMATES 

The Company revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind-AS or if the change will 
provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the financial statements. Changes in accounting policies are 
applied retrospectively. 

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to 
Statement of Profit & Loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. 

Discovery of material errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabil ities 
and equity of the earl iest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earl iest period 
presented are also restated. 

As per our report attached 
PRASS & ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 1 0781 6  WIW 1 00222 ANANDI RAMALINGAM 

sd/­
AJ I NKYA RANADIVE 
Partner 
MEM. NO. 1 48962 

Place: Pune 
Date : 1 9th May 2022 

Chairman 

sd/-
DCN SRIN IVASA RAO 
Chief Executive Officer 
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NOTE 1 :  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT YEAR ENDED 3101 MARCH 2022 � in Lakhs 

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Value 

As at 1st Additions Deduction I As at 31st As at 1st Charge for Deduction I As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st Reclassification Reclassification & Particulars April 2021 IAdjustments March, 2022 April 2021 the year March, 2022 March, 2022 March, 2021 & Adjustments Adjustments 

OWNED ASSETS 

Buildings 480 - - 480 1 74 30 - 204 276 306 

Plant & Machinery 9,934 30 - 9,964 4,425 687 - 5, 1 1 2  4,852 5,509 

Office Equipment 29 2 - 31 1 7  3 - 20 1 1  1 2  

Electrical installation 1 30 - - 1 30 66 1 4  - 80 50 64 

Furniture & Fixtures 58 3 - 61 30 6 - 36 25 28 

Computer Systems 41 8 - 49 33 6 - 39 1 0  8 

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 

Leasehold Land 1 8  - - 1 8  1 - - 1 1 7  1 7  

Total 1 0,690 43 - 1 0,733 4,746 746 - 5,492 5,241 5,944 

Previous Year 21 1 0,690 749 4,746 5,944 6,672 

1 .  Plant and Machinery (Gross Carrying Value ) includes Assets to the tune of �33/- Lakhs (Previous Year �33/- Lakhs) which is funded out of grant under 
TPDUP Project. 

2. Plant and Machinery (Gross Carrying Value) includes Assets to the tune of �5,61 1 /- Lakhs(Previous Year �5,61 1 /- Lakhs) which is funded out of grant 
received for implementation of Transfer of Technology for XD- 4 I . I .Tubes. 

3.  Depreciation on Plant and Machinery of �687/- Lakhs includes depreciation on ToT equipments (XD-4) of �520/- Lakhs. 
4. Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) in accordance with Schedule II of Companies Act 201 3. 
5. The useful life of assets for calculation of depreciation other than those under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 201 3 are as under : 

i) Plant and Machinery (Continuous Process plant) 1 5  Years 
As per the terms of the Technology License Agreement, the Linear Transfer Lines ( continuous process plant) are supported by the ToT provider for a period 
of 1 5  years. 
It is ascertained on the basis of Technical Assessment by the Management that the Linear Transfer Lines would be used for a period of 1 5  Years. 

6. Additional Depreciation of 50 % and 1 00% has been charged on Plant & Machinery items in respect of double shift working and triple shift working 
respectively. 

7. The Company has acquired 1 3680 square meter of land on lease from MIDC for 95 years at a cost of �21/- Lakhs on 25. 1 1 . 1 991 with renewable option of 
further 95 years on new terms and conditions. 
Cost of leasehold land capitalised is �23/- Lakhs & Gross Carrying Amount is � 1 8/- Lakhs. Lease agreement is duly executed in favour of the Company. 

8. Depreciation on Lease Hold Land is �24,614/- wrt Current year which is rounded off. 
9. Refer Note No 40 for Hypothecation Note. 
1 0. Gross Carrying Value and Accumulated Depreciation includes �2024/- pertaining to assets not in active use is rounded off, d isposal of which is pending. 
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NOTE 2 - CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS � i n  Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March 2022 31- March 2021 

1 .  Civil Construction 
Opening balance - -

Add: Addition during the year 64 -

Less: Amount capitalised during the year - -

Total (1)  64 -

2. Plant and machinery 
Opening balance 5,090 5,085 
Add: Addition during the year - 7 
Less: Amount capitalised during the year 3 2 

Total (2) 5,087 5,090 
GRANT TOTAL 5, 1 51 5,090 

Addition to Capital Work in Progress in Plant & Machinery includes � 4 , 1 89/- in current year is rounded off 

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS AGEING SCHEDULE 
As at 31st March, 2022 

CWIP 
Less than 1 year 

Projects in progress 

AHU Building Construction 64 

XR-5 Project -

Projects temporarily suspended -

TOTAL 64 

As at 31st March, 2021 

CWIP 
Less than 1 year 

Projects in progress 

XR-5 Project 4 

Computers 3 

Projects temporarily suspended -

TOTAL 7 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

- - -

4 77 5,006 
- - -

4 77 5,006 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

77 1 4  4,992 
- - -

- - -

77 14  4,992 

Total 

64 

5,087 

-

5,1 51 

Total 

5,087 

3 
-

5,090 
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NOTE 3 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2022 

Gross Carrying Amount 

As at 10t  Additions Deduction I 
Particulars April 2021 IAdjustments Reclassification 

& Adjustments 

License Fee (XD-4) 1 8,424 - -

Computer 2 1 -
Operating System 

Total 1 8,426 1 -

Previous Year 

As at 3101 
March, 2022 

1 8,424 

3 

1 8,427 

1 8,426 

As at 101 
April 2021 

7,500 

1 

7,501 

Accumulated Amortisation 

Deduction I As at 3101 
For the year Reclassification & March, 2022 Adjustments 

1 ,250 - 8,750 

- - 1 

1 ,250 - 8,751 

1 ,250 7,501 

� in Lakhs 

Net Carrying Value 

As at 3101 
March, 2022 

9,674 

2 

9,676 

10,925 

As at 3101 
March, 2021 

1 0,924 

1 

10,925 

12,175 

1 .  Intangible Assets (Gross Carrying amount) includes � 1 3,689/- Lakhs (Previous Year �1 3,689/- Lakhs) which is funded out of grant received for implementation of 
Transfer ofTechnology (ToT) XD-4. 

2. Amortisation is calculated on straight -line basis over the estimated useful l ives of asset. 
3. Amortisation of Computer Operating System is �25,311  /-wrt current year and � 1 8,863/- w.r.t. previous year which is rounded off. 
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NOTE 4 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 
TOT (XR-5) 
Opening balance 8,564 8,51 3 
Add: Addition during the year 1 51 
Less: Amount capitalised - -

Total 8,565 8,564 

The additons to intangible assets under development are on account of the Capital isation of borrowing cost. 

Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule � in Lakhs 

As at 31st March, 2022 

Intangible assets Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 
Total under development Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Project in Progress 1 51 1 ,497 7,01 6 8,565 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021 � in Lakhs 

Intangible assets Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of 
Total under development Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Project in Progress 51 1 ,497 1 ,884 5, 1 32 8,564 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

NOTE 5 - TRADE RECEIVABLES- NON CURRENT � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

3181 March 2022 3181 March 2021 

Trade Receivable Considered Good -Secured - -

Trade Receivable Considered Good -Unsecured - -

Trade Receivable having Significant Increase in Credit Risk - -

Trade Receivable , Credit Impaired 

1 .  From Related Party 140 140 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 1 40 140 

Sub Total (1)  - -

2.From Others - 20 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - 20 

Sub Total (2) - -

Total - -

Trade Receivable from others include � 371 901- w.r.t. current year is rounded off. 

The movement in the allowance for doubtful receivables is presented as follows: � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March  2022 As at 3181 March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1 60 1 60 

Expected Credit loss provision during the year - -

Written off during the year 4 -

Credited to Profit or Loss 1 6  -

Balance at the end of the year 1 40 160 

Refer Note No 40 for Related Party Disclosure. 
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING - NON-CURRENT 

As at 31st March, 2021 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

months 1 year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - -

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - -

which have significant increase in credit risk 

(ii i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - 1 40 

- credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -

--considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which - - - - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -

- credit impaired 

As at 31st March, 2021 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

months 1 year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - - - - - -

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - -

which have significant increase in credit risk 

(ii i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - 1 60 

- credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -

--considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which - - - - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - -

- credit impaired 

NOTE 6 : LOANS - NON CURRENT 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

Total 

-

-

140 

-

-

-

� in Lakhs 

Total 

-

-

160 

-

-

-

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Loans- Non Current - -

Total - -
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NOTE 7 - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON CURRENT 

Particulars As at 3101 March 2022 

Security Deposits 
- Considered Good, Secured -

- Considered Good,Unsecured 
Deposits with MSEB 31 
Deposits for water supply 1 
Other deposits 4 

- Significant Increase in Credit Risk 
Credit Impaired -

Term deposits with more than 1 2  months maturity 1 05 
Interest Accured on term Deposits 1 
Total 142 

'I . Interest Accured on Term Deposit of � 8,226/- wrt previous year is rounded off. 

2. Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements 

NOTE 8 - INVENTORIES - NON CURRENT 

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 

Inventories 
Raw materials 44 
Less: Provision for Non-Moving Stock 6 
Less: Provision for obsolescence 38 
Total -

NOTE 9 - OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Particulars As at 
31st March 2022 

Capital Advances 449 
Prepaid Expenses 1 2  
Advance service tax paid on (XR-5) 32 
Advance TDS (XR-5) 48 
Advances to suppliers 

Unsecured considered doubtful 22 
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 22 -

Deposits 
Deposit with Excise Authorities -

Deposit with Court (Octroi) 14  
Deposit for Octroi 23 
Deposit with Service tax authorities 20 57 

Total 598 

1 .Deposit with Excise Authorities of �1 ,000/- wrt current year & previous year is rounded off. 

NOTE 10  - INVENTORIES- CURRENT 

Particulars As at 
31 st March 2022 

Raw materials* 485 
Stores & consumables* 1 88 
Work- in- Progress 2,408 3,081 
Machinery spares 349 

Total 3,430 

Notes 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

As at 3101 March 2021 

-

31 
-
4 

-
22 

-
58 

� in Lakhs 

As at 3101 March 2021 

6 
2 
4 
-

� in Lakhs 

As at 
3101 Ma ch 2021 

439 
1 2  
32 
48 

22 
22 -

-

14  
23 
20 57 

588 

� in Lakhs 

As at 
3101 March 2021 
558 
241 

2,489 3,288 
351 

3,639 

1 .  * Raw material and Stores & consumables include � 1 5  Lakhs (Previous year �Nil) being material with sub-contractors. 
2. The assets which are received / retained by the company on behalf of the customer do not form part of the inventory. 
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NOTE 11 • TRADE RECEIVABLES· CURRENT 

Particulars As at 31"1 March 2022 

Trade Receivables Considered Good Secured . 

Trade Receivables Considered Good, Unsecured 

. From related party 36 

. From others 61 

Trade Receivable having Significant Increase in Credit Risk -

Trade Receivable , Credit Impaired -

Total 97 

1 .  Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements & Classification of Financial Instruments. 

2.  Refer Note No 40 for Related Party Disclosure & for Security Hypothecation . 

3. Satisfaction of performance obligation viz-a-viz payment 

Payment Terms : 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

As at 31- March 2021 
. 

47 

984 

-

-

1 ,031 

a. Contracts from Government/Government Departments,PSU's Typically payments are made in either of the 

following terms :-

i} 90% within seven days and 1 0% after inspection and acceptance. 

i i} 30 days credit from date of supply. 

ii i} 1 5% Advance Payment alongwith release of order, 35% after procurement of bulk materials, 35% after completion of 

bulk assembly and fabricated parts, 1 0% against proof of despatch, 5% after completion of inspection within sixty 

days of receipt of stores. 

b. Contracts with private customers :- Advance payment before despatch of goods. 

c. Advance received from customer are classified as contract liability and Progressively adjusted on completion of 

performance obligation. Balance amount receivable after adjusting advance is classified as Trade Receivable. 

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING · CURRENT 

As at 3101 March, 2022 � in Lakhs 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 Total 

months 1 year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 97 - - - - 97 

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - - -

which have significant increase in credit risk 

(ii i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which - - - - - -

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- credit impaired 
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As at 318t March, 2021 � in Lakhs 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 -2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 Total 

months 1 year years 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 1 ,031 - - - - 1 ,031 

considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- - - - - - · 

which have significant increase in credit risk 

(ii i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - -

- credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - · 

--considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables-which - - - - - · 

have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - · 

- credit impaired 

NOTE 12- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS � in Lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

1 .  Cash and cash equivalents 
a. Balances with banks 

In current accounts 54 3 
In cash credit account 43 37 
In term deposits 3,354 1 ,452 
(Original Maturity upto 3 months) 

b. Cash and Stamps on Hand - -
Total 3,451 1 ,492 

1 .  The cash and cash equivalents includes term deposits with original maturity period up to three months. Term deposits 
with original maturity period beyond three months but up to maturity period of 1 2  months have been included in Bank 
Balances in Note No . 1 3  

2 .  Cash and Stamps on Hand includes � 1 55/- stamps i n  hand wrt current year is rounded off. (Previous Year � 1 1 0) 
Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements. 

Forthe purpose ofthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following : 

� in Lakhs 
Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Balances with Banks 3,451 1 ,492 

Cash and stamp on hand - -

Total 3,451 1 ,492 

NOTE 1 3- BANK BALANCES � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 318t March  2022 As at 3101 March 2021 
In Term deposit 278 
(Original Maturity of more than 3 months and less 
than 1 2  months) 
Margin Money Held With Bank -

Total 278 

1 .  Term Deposit with Original Matuirty period of more than 1 2  months is shown under Note No. 7 

2.  Term Deposit with Original Matuirty period of Upto 3 months is shown under Note No. 1 2. 

330 

330 

3. For an understanding of the Company's cash management policies, refer liquidity risk note No. 39 (vi) 

4 .  Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements. 
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NOTE 14  - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31 at March 2021 
Interest accured on Term deposit 1 9  24 
Other Receivables - -

Stipend receivables (trainees) 3 5 

Total 22 29 

1 .  Other Receivables of �45,092/- wrt current year & � 39,605/- wrt previous year is rounded off. 
Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements. 

NOTE 15  - CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31 st March 2022 As at 31at March 2021 

Balances with Income Tax Authorities Towards Refund - 2 1 5  
Advance Payment of Income Tax - 3 

Total - 218 

NOTE 16  - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31at March 2021 

Prepaid expenses 20 1 6  

Advance to suppliers 95 80 

Travel advance - 1 

Other Advances 
Advance TDS (XR-5) 9 9 

Advance service tax paid on (XR-5) 6 6 

Balance with revenue authorities 
FBT refund due - -

GST input tax credit 20 2 

GST TDS 14  34 - 2 

Total 1 64 1 14  

1 .Travel advance of �8,421 /- wrt current year i s  rounded off. 

2. FBT refund due of �45,928/- wrt current year & previous year is rounded off. 

55 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

NOTE 17  - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at 
31st March 2022 3101 March 2021 

Authorised Capital: 
1 0,00,00,000/- (Previous period 1 0,00,00,000/-) equity shares of � 1 0/- each 1 0,000 1 0,000 
Issued Capital: 
8,45,06,970 (Previous period 8,45,06,970 ) equity shares of � 1 0/- each 8,451 8,451 
Subscribed and Paid - up Capital: 
8,45,06,970 (Previous period 8,45,06,970 ) equity shares of � 1 0/- each fully paid up 8,451 8,451 

� in Lakhs 
Reconciliation of the no. of shares As at As at 
outstanding at the beginning and at the 31st March 2022 3101 March 2021 
end of the year: No of shares Amount No of shares Amount 

No of equity shares outstanding at the beginning 8,45,06,970 8,451 8,38,62,590 8,386 
of the year 
Add : Additional equity shares issued during - - 6,44,380 64 
the year 
Less: Equity Shares forfeited/Bought back - - - -

during the year 
No of equity shares outstanding at the end of 8,45,06,970 8,451 8,45,06,970 8,451 
the year: 

Notes: 
1 .  Out of the above, 8,45,06,970 Equity Shares of � 1 0/- each (Previous Year 8,45,06,970) are held by Bharat Electronics Ltd 

(BEL) the Holding Company, and it's nominees. BELOP is a wholly owned subsidiary of BEL with effect from 30th July 201 5. 
2. Details ofthe Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company are as follows 

2021 -22 2020-21 
Particulars 

Number of shares % of Shareholding Number of shares 

Equity Shares: 
Bharat Electronics Limited 8,45,06,970 1 00 8,45,06,970 

3. Details of the Number of shares held by promoters in the company are as follows : 

As at 31st March, 2022 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter Name No. of Shares 

Bharat Electronics Limited 8,45,06,970 

As at 31st March, 2021 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter Name No. of Shares 

Bharat Electronics Limited 8,45,06,970 

Terms, Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares 
a) The Company has only one class of shares viz, Equity Shares. 

% of total shares 

1 00 

% of total shares 

1 00 

% of Shareholding 

1 00 

% Change during 
the year 

-

% Change during 
the year 

-

b) Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote on show of hands and in poll in proportion to the Number of shares held . 
c) Each Shareholder has a right to receive the dividend declared by the Company. 
d) On winding up of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to get the realised value ofthe remaining assets of the 

Company, if any, after distribution of all preferential amounts as per law. The distribution wil l  be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 

FINAL DIVIDEND � in Lakhs 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Particulars 31st March 2022 3101 March 2021 

Final Dividend for FY 2020-21 & FY 201 9-20 147 91 
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NOTE 1 8- BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at 

3101 March 2022 3101 March 2021 

Term Loan - -

Total - -

NOTE 19  - GOVERNMENTS GRANTS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at 
31"t March 2022 310t March 2021 

TOT (XD-4) PROJECT 8,691 1 0,006 

Total 8,691 1 0,006 

Refer Note No. 40 (5) for Government Grants 

NOTE 20 - PROVISIONS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at 
3101 March 2022 310t March 2021 

Long-term compensated absences 521 459 

Total 521 459 

The movement in the provisions during the year is as follows. 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars As at Additions Utilisation As at 31 .03.2022 
01 .04.2021 Long-term Short-term 

Long-term compensated absences 474 85 28 521 1 0  

Total 474 85 28 521 1 0  

NOTE 21 

I) DEFERRED TAX LlABILITIES/(ASSETS) (NET) � in Lakhs 

Nature of timing difference As at 3101 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 809 837 
Deferred Tax Assets 664 801 

Total 145 36 

II) AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 3101 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Income Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 324 67 

Add : Deferred Tax (77) 1 55 

Less: Earlier Year Taxes 6 -

Income Tax Expenses 253 222 
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NOTE NO. 21 
III) INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME � in Lakhs 

31 .03.2022 3 1 .03.2021 

Particulars 
Before Tax 

N et of Tax 
Before Tax 

N et of Tax Tax (expense) benefit Tax (expense) benefit 

Remeasurement (Iosses)/gains 1 5  (4) 1 1  (64) 1 8  (46) 
on post employment defined 
benefit plans 

Total 1 5  (4) 1 1  (64) 1 8  (46) 

iv) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are attributable to the following: � i n  Lakhs 

Deferred Tax (Assets) Deferred Tax Liabi lity N et Deferred Tax 
Particulars (Assets )/Liability 

31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 

Trade Receivables-Provision (41 ) (44) - - (41 ) 

Provision others (1 55) (143) - - (1 55) 

Employee Benefits (1 54) (1 32) - - (1 54) 

Intangible Assets - - 550 560 550 

Trade Payables (6) (6) - - (6) 

Plant Property and Equipment - - 259 277 259 

Bonus (1 ) (1 ) - - (1 ) 

Super Annuation (22) (1 7) - - (22) 

Inventory ( 13) - - - (1 3) 

MAT Credit (272) (458) - - (272) 

Total (664) (801 ) 809 837 145 

v) Movement of Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities 

Balance as on Recognised in Recognised in 
Particulars 01 .04.2021 P&L during OCI during 

2021 -22 2021 -22 

Trade Receivables -Provision (44) 3 -

Provision others (143) ( 12) -

Employee Benefits (1 32) (22) -

Intangible Assets 560 (1 0) -

Trade Payables (6) - -

Plant Property and Equipment 277 (1 8) -

Bonus (1 ) - -

Super Annuation (1 7) (5) -

Inventory - ( 13) -

MAT Credit (458) - -

Tax Loss - - -

Total 36 (77) -

MAT Credit utlised during the year is � 1 87 Lakhs has No Impact on Profit & Loss Account 
MAT Credit availed during the year is � 1 Lakhs has No Impact on Profit & Loss Account. 
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(44) 

( 143) 

(1 32) 

560 

(6) 

277 

(1 ) 

(1 7) 

-

(458) 

36 

� in Lakhs 

Balance as on 
31 .03.2022 

(41 ) 

(1 55) 

(1 54) 

550 

(6) 

259 

(1 ) 

(22) 

(1 3) 

(272) 

-

145 



2021 -22 
vi) Reconcilation of Effective Tax rate 

Particulars Amount Tax Effect Tax Rate 
I Tax at Normal Rate 

1 Book profit 769 

2 Tax rate @29 . 12% 224 29. 1 2  
Tax Provision expenses as 
per Books 

3 Tax Provision for Current Year 324 
4 Add: Deferred Tax (77) 
5 Earlier Year Taxes 6 
6 Net Provision for Taxes 253 

Difference (2-6) (29) (3.77%) 
Effect of 
Other Expenses 29 

Total 29 

011 vii i) There are no items on which deferred Tax has not been created. 
co 

3.77% 

3.77% 

2020-21 
vi) Reconcilation of Effective Tax rate 

Particulars Amount Tax Effect 
I Tax at Normal Rate 

1 Book profit 712  

2 Tax rate @27.82% 1 98 

Tax Provision expenses 
as per Books 

3 Tax Provision for Current Year 67 

4 Less: Deferred Tax 1 55 

5 Earlier Year Taxes -

6 Net Provision for Taxes 222 

Difference (2-6) (24) 
Effect of 

Non deductible Expenses 24 

Total 24 

� in Lakhs 

Tax Rate 

27.82% 

(3.37%) 

3.37% 

3.37% 
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NOTE 22 - BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT 

Particulars 

Loan from related party 

Current Mauritites of Long Term Debt 
(Loan From BEL) 

Total 

NOTE 23 - GOVERNMENTS GRANTS 

Particulars 

TOT (XD-4) PROJECT 

Total 

Refer Note No. 40 (5) for Government Grants 

NOTE 24- TRADE PAYABLES 

Particulars 

(1 ) Dues to micro and small enterprises 
(2) Dues to creditors other than micro and 

small enterprises 

Total (1+2) 

i )  Micro and Small Enterprises (MSE) 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

As at 3101 March 2022 As at 31111 March 2021 

- 378 

- 378 

� in Lakhs 

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31M March 2021 

1 ,31 5 1 ,31 5 

1 ,31 5 1 ,31 5 

� in Lakhs 

As at 3 1 01 March 2022 As at 31 "' March 2021 

49 1 39 
2 1 0  249 

259 388 

The information under MSMED Act, 2006 has been disclosed to the extent such vendors have been identified by the 

company during the year. The details of amounts outstanding to them based on available information with the Company is 

as under : 

� in  Lakhs 

Particulars 2021 -22 2020-21 

Amount due and Payable at the year end 
- Principal -
- Interest on above Principal -

Payments made during the year after the due date 
- Principal -

- Interest -

Interest due and payable for principals already paid -

Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at year end -

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, -

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006. 

ii) Interest Due and payable for principals already paid � 22, 1 1 1/-for current and previous year is rounded off. 

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

i i i) The information is given in respect of such suppliers to the extent they could be indentified as a Micro & Small Enterprises 
on the basis of information available with the Company. 

iv) Refer Note No. 39 forfairvalue measurements. 
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TRADE PAYABLES AGEING 
As at 3101 March, 2022 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 1 year 

(i) MSME 48 
(ii) Others 89 
(i i i) Disputed dues - MSME -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -

1 .  Outstanding amount due to MSME includes following: 

1 -2 years 
-
-
-
-

a) Outstanding for 1 -2 years include � 26,622/- is rounded off 
b) Outstanding for more than 3 years include � 1 5,662/- is rounded off 

2-3 years 

1 
27 

-
-

2. Outstanding amount due to others for 1 -2 years includes � 1 6,397/- is rounded of. 

More than 3 years 
-

94 
-
-

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

(i) MSME 1 38 1 -

(ii) Others 60 1 20 2 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - -

Outstanding amount due to MSME includes outstanding for 2-3 years �1 5,662/- is rounded off 

NOTE 25 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

-

67 
-
-

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

Total 

49 
21 0 

-
-

� in Lakhs 

Total 

139 
249 

-
-

� in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 3181 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 
Capital Creditors 4 
Accured Interest on Loan from BEL -

EMD Deposits 3 
Security Deposits 38 
Outstanding Liabilities 1 00 
Interest Payable to MSME -
Total 145 

Interest Payable to MSME of � 22, 1 1 11- wrt current & previous year is rounded off. 
Refer Note No. 39 for fair value measurements 

NOTE 26 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars As at 3101 March 2022 

Movement of Contract Liabilities 
Advances from Customers 394 

Statutory Dues Payable 
TDS Payable 1 8  
GST Payable 2 
Other Statutory Dues Payable 1 9  39 

Total 433 

2. MOVEMENT OF CONTRACT LIABILITIES. 

Particulars 2021 -22 

Opening Balance (A) 70 
Receipt of advance from Customer during the year 376 
Total - (B) 376 
Contract liability adjusted against- Revenue recognised during the year 52 
out of Opening balance 
Contract liability adjusted against- Revenue recognised during the year -

out of Advance received in Current Year 
Total - (C) 52 
Grand Total ( Closing Balance ) D = ( A+B-C) 394 
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1 33 
2 
3 

50 
1 58 

-
346 

� in Lakhs 

As at 3101 March 2021 

70 

1 1  
1 67 

1 4  1 92 
262 

� in Lakhs 

2020-21 

4 
1 82 
1 82 

4 

1 1 2  

1 1 6  
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NOTE 27 - PROVISIONS � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 311t March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Provision for Performance Warranty 534 51 7 
Provisions towards employee benefits 
Long-term compensated absences 1 0  1 5  
Gratuity 38 1 25 
Annual incentive 141  121  
Provision for Bonus 2 2 
Pay revision - -

Superannuation 80 271 - 263 
Total 805 780 

1 .  Provision for Superannuation has been re-classified out of Outstanding Liabil ities from Note 1\10. 25 for current year. 

2. Provision for Superannuation amounting to � 62 Lakhs was included in Outstanding Liabilities in Note No. 25 for Previous year. 

MOVEMENT OF PROVISIONS FOR THE YEAR 2021 -22 
I) PROVISION FOR PERFORMANCE WARRANTY � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 3101 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2023 

Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 51 7 1 ,001 

Add: Additional Provision made during the year 26 -

Less : Amounts Used during the year 9 9 

Less : Unused amounts reversed during the year - 475 

Carrying Amounts at the end of the year 534 51 7 

Brief description ofthe nature ofthe obligation and the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits : 
1 )  Warranty Provision: 

Costs are accrued at the time of sale of products. Provisions towards warranty is based on the past experience. 
The provision is discharged over the warranty period of 24/48 months from the date of sale. 

II) PROVISIONS TOWARDS EMPLOYEE BENEFIT � in Lakhs 

Particulars Superannuation Annual Provision Pay 
Incentive for Bonus Revision 

Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 01 .04.2021 62 121  2 -

Add: Additional Provision made during the year 2021 -22 1 8  60 2 -

Less : Amounts Used during the year 2021 -22 - 28 2 -

Less : Unused amounts reversed during the year 2021 -22 - 1 2  - -

Carrying Amounts at the end of the year 31 .03.2022 80 141 2 -

Bonus Provision towards Executives of � 6,378/- has been written back during the year and is rounded off 
� in Lakhs 

Particulars Superannuation Annual Provision 
Incentive for Bonus 

Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 01 .04.2020 45 96 2 

Add: Additional Provision made during the year 2020-21 1 7  74 2 

Less : Amounts Used during the year 2020-21 - 37 2 

Less : Unused amounts reversed during the year 2020-21  - 1 2  -

Carrying Amounts at the end of the year 31 .03.2021 62 121 2 

Bonus Provision towards Executives of � 48,255/- has been written back during the year due to implementation of 
Pay Revision and is rounded off. 

62 

Pay 
Revision 

493 

-

254 

239 

-
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS � in Lakhs 

IndAS-1 9  

GRATUITY 

Details of Employee Benefits as required by the Ind AS 19  Employee Benefits are as under : 

Defined Benefit Plan 

i) Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss is � 53/- Lakhs 
(Previous Year � 61/- Lakhs) 

ii) Actuarial gains and losses in respect of defined benefit plans recognised in the statement Other Comprensive Income is 
� (1 5)/- Lakhs (Previous Year � 64/- Lakhs) 

ii i) Gratuity is a benefit to an employee based on 15 days last drawn salary for each completed year of service. 
iv) Gratuity plan is funded. 

� in Lakhs 
Particulars Gratuity 

(A) Changes in the present value of defined obligation representing Current year Previous Year 
reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows : 

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the period 1 ,004 844 

2 Interest Cost 69 57 

3 Current Service Cost 44 40 

4 Past Service Cost - -

5 LiabilityTransferred Inl Acqisitions - -

6 (Liability Transferred Out! Divestment) - -

7 Losses (gains) on Curtai lment - -

8 Liabilities extinguished on settlements - -

9 (Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -

1 0  (Benefit Paid From the Fund) (1 2) ( 12) 

1 1  The Effect of Changes i n  Foreign Exchange Rates - -

1 2  Actuarial (gains) I losses on obligations -Due to Change i n  DemographicAssumptions 1 -

1 3  Actuarial (gains) I losses on obligations- Due to Change i n  FinancialAssumptions (1 0) (2) 

14  Actuarial (gains) I losses on  obligations- Due to Experience 3 77 

1 5  Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation as on Balance Sheet date 1 ,099 1 ,004 

� i n  Lakhs 

(B) Changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconci liation 
of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows : 

Current year Previous Year 

1 Fair value of Plan assets at the Beginning of the period 879 544 

2 Interest Income 60 36 

3 Actual contributions by Employers 1 26 300 

4 Expected contributions by Employees - -

5 Assets Transferred Inl Acqisitions - -

6 (Assets Transferred Outl Divestment) - -

7 (Benefit Paid From the Fund) (12)  ( 12) 

8 (Assets Distributed on Settlements) - -

9 Effects of Asset Ceiling - -

1 0  The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

1 1  Return o n  Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 8 1 1  

1 2  Fairvalue of Plan assets at the End ofthe Period 1 ,061 879 
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� in Lakhs 

(C) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet Current year Previous Year 

1 Present value of Plan assets at the end of the period (1 ,099) (1 ,004) 

2 Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year 1 ,061 879 

3 Funded Status [Surplus/(Defecit)] (38) (1 25) 

4 Net AsseU(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (38) (1 25) 

� i n  Lakhs 

(D) 
Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and fair 

Current year Previous Year 
value of plan assets showing amount recognized in the Balance Sheet : 

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the period (1 ,099) (1 ,004) 

2 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 1 ,061 879 

3 Funded status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (38) (1 25) 

4 Unrecognized Past Service Costs - -

5 Net asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (38) (1 25) 

� i n  Lakhs 

(E) 
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for current Current year Previous Year Period 

1 Current Service cost 45 41 
2 Interest cost 8 20 

3 Past Service cost - -

4 (Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -

5 Losses (gains) on Curtailments & Settlements - -

6 Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

7 Total expense recognised in the Statement of 53 61 
Profit & Loss under Contribution to Gratuity Fund 

� in Lakhs 
(F) Expenses Recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for Current Period Current year Previous Year 

1 Acturial (Gains)/Losses on the Obligation for the period (7) 75 

2 Return Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (8) ( 1 1  ) 

3 Change in Asset Ceiling - -

4 Net (Income)/Expenses forthe Period Recognised in OCI ( 15) 64 

(G) In respect of Funded Benefits with respect to gratuity and superannuation, the fairvalue of Plan assets represents 
the amounts invested through "Insurer Managed Funds" 

� in Lakhs 

(H) Principal Actuarial Assumptions : Current year Previous Year 

1 Discount Rate (%) 6.98% 6.86% 

2 Expected Return on plan assets (%) 6.98% 6.86% 

3 Salary Escalation (%) 1 0.50% 1 0.50% 

4 Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% 

a) The Discount rate is based on the prevail ing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for 
the estimated terms of the obligations. 

b) Expected Rate of Return of Plan Assets : This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected 
on investments of the Fund during the estimated term of obligations. 

c) Salary Escalation Rate : The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors. 
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� in Lakhs 

(I) Sensitivity Analysis 
Current year Previous Year 

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 1 ,099 1 ,004 

1 Delta Effect +1 % Change in Rate of Discouting (80) (78) 

2 Delta Effect -1 % Change in Rate of Discouting 89 88 

3 Delta Effect +1 % Change in Rate of salary increase 86 84 

4 Delta Effect -1 % Change in Rate of salary increase (78) (76) 

5 Delta Effect +1 % Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (1 5) ( 16) 

6 Delta Effect -1 % Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 1 7  1 7  

(J) Investment of Gratuity Fund is with Insurance Company 

LEAVE ENCASHMENT 

IndAS-19 

The company has a leave encashment scheme which is a non-funded scheme. 

As per the scheme all employees of the company are entitled to encash their accumulated Annual Leave subject to the retention 
of minimum leave as prescribed for each grade, The encashed leave is payable at the rate of (Basic+DA)/30 per day. 

The liability for payment of long term compensated absence such as annual leave valued on actuarial basis is � 531 /- Lakhs as on 
31 .03.2022 (Previous Year � 474/- Lakhs). The actuarial valuation has been done using PUC method. 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars 31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 

Retirement Age 58 years 58 years 

Attrition Rate 2% 2% 

Future Salary Rise 1 0.50% 1 0.50% 

Rate of Discounting 6.98% 6.86% 

Mortality Table Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) Mortal ity (2006-08) 

The amount of Liabil ity on long term compensated absences has been bifurcated between current and non-current based on the 
report of Actuary. 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Current Liability 1 0  1 5  

Non Current Liability 521 459 

Total 531 474 

NOTE 28 - CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 31st  March 2022 As at 31- March 2021 

Provision for income tax (Net of advance tax) 65 -

Interest on Income Tax 4 -

Total 69 -
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NOTE 29 - REVENUE FROM OPERATION � in Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
As at 310t March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

(a) Sale of products 4,371 4,032 
(b) Sale of services 21 5 4,586 43 4,075 
(c) Other Operating Revenue 

(i) Sale of Manufacturing Scrap 3 
( i i) Excess Provision Written Back 
- Warranty for Replacement - 474 
- Obsolescence Inventory - 1 6  
- Doubtful Debts 1 6  -
- Others 1 20 - 490 

(d) Government Grant 1 .31 5 1 ,31 5 
Total Revenue (a+b+c+d) 5,921 5,880 

i) Break up of revenue recognised against contracts with customers for 2021 -22 � in Lakhs 

Government of India IPSU Others 

Particulars Defence Non-Defence Domestic Exports Offset Total 
Business 

Sale of Product 4,345 8 1 8  - - 4,371 
Income from Services 1 25 5 85 - - 21 5 

Total 4,470 1 3  1 03 - - 4,586 

i) Break up of revenue recognised against contracts with customers for 2020-21 � in Lakhs 
Government of India IPSU 

Others 

Particulars Defence Non-Defence Domestic Exports Offset Total 

Business 
Sale of Product 3,780 21 0 42 - - 4,032 
Income from Services 24 1 1 8  - - 43 

Total 3,804 21 1 60 - - 4,075 

ii) Reconciliation of Revenue Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with contract Price for 2021 -22. 

� in Lakhs 
Particulars Amount Amount 

Revenue as per Statement of P&L Account 

Sale from Products 4,371 

Income from service 2 1 5  

Total ( a )  4,586 

Adjustments(b) -

Contract price (a-b) 4,586 
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ii) Reconciliation of Revenue Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with contract Price for 2020-21 

Particulars 
Revenue as per Statement of P&L Account 
Sale from Products 
Income from service 
Total ( a )  
Adjustments (b) 
Contract price (a-b) 

i i i  Satisfaction of Performance Obl igation 

Amount 

4,032 
43 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 
Amount 

4,075 
-

4,075 

a. In majority of the contract performance obligation is satisfied "at a point in time" which is primarily determined on customer 
obtaining control of the asset. One of the prime indicator considered for this is transfer of significant risk and rewards to the 
customer based on Inco terms. 

b. Company's Contract normally do not contain significant financial component and any advance payment received and lor 
amount retained by customer is with intention of protecting either parties to the contract. 

c. The company's turnover mainly includes supply of Image Intensifier Tubes. 
d.  Contract entered into with customer, typically do not have a return/refund clause. 
e. Warranties provided are primarily in the nature of performance warranty. 
f. For revenue recognition in respect of performance obligation satisfied at a "point in time" the following criteria is used for 

determining whether customer has obtained " Control on asset " 
• Terms of delivery as perthe contract 
• Customer has legal title to the asset 
• The entity has transferred physical possession ofthe asset 
• Customer has accepted the asset 
• Entity has the present right to paymentforthe asset 

g .  Transaction price is  typically determined based on contract entered into with customer. 
h .  No non-cash consideration are received/given during the currenUprevious year. 

NOTE 30 - OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

As at 31st March 2022 

Interest on term deposits 83 
Interest others 2 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1 5  
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation (net) @ 9 
Miscellaneous income 2 
Sale of Scrap 1 
Total 1 1 2  

� i n  Lakhs 

For the year ended 
As at 31M March 2021 

68 
3 

-

-

2 
-

73 

1 .  @ The foreign exchange Gain /( loss) is on account of rate variations arising on transactions in foreign currency between 
the date of recording of such transactions and the setllemenU the reporting date. 

2. Scrap Sale amounting to �4,277/- wrt Previous year is rounded off. 

NOTE 31 - COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

As at 310t March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 
1} Raw material and components consumed 
Opening stock 564 699 
Add: Purchases 1 ,016  881 

1 ,580 1 ,580 
Less : Closing stock 529 564 
Sub - Total (1 ) 1 ,051 1 ,016 
2} Stores and consumables consumed 
Opening stock 241 237 
Add: Purchases 42 66 

283 303 
Less : Closing stock 1 88 241 
Sub -Total (2) 95 62 
Total (1 +2) 1 ,146 1 ,078 

67 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

NOTE 35 - DEPRECIATION I AMORTISATION � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

As at 31.1 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments 746 749 

Amortisation on Intangible Assets 1 ,250 1 ,250 

Total 1 ,996 1 ,999 

NOTE 36 - TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FEE (XR-5 TOT) � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

As at 31.1 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Technical assistance fees - -

Total - -

NOTE 37 - OTHER EXPENSES � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

As at 31.1 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Power and fuel 1 73 1 58 

Water charges 3 2 

Travelling & conveyance 1 7  1 3  

Communication 3 3 

Printing and stationery 2 2 

Insurance 35 32 

Rates & taxes 20 20 

Bank charges 7 7 

Legal & professional charges 1 3  1 2  

Loss on foreign exchange (net)* - 9 

Repairs 

Machinery 46 8 

Building 1 -

General maintenance expenses 1 1 6  1 1 2  

Bad Debts - 1 

Provision for Obsolete Stock 34 -

Provision for Non-Moving Stock 4 2 

Provision for repairs during warranty period 26 -

CSR Expenses 1 9  23 

Miscellaneous expenses 1 8  8 

Total 537 412 

1 .  * The Foreign Exchange Loss is on account of rate variations arising on transactions in foreign currency between the date of 
recording of such transactions and the seUlemenUthe reporting date. 

2. Repairs to Building amounting to �48,767/-w.r.t. Previous year is rounded off. 
3. Bad Debts amounting to � 1 8,536/- w.r.t. Current year is rounded off. 
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NOTE 32 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN -TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars For the yer ended For the yer ended 
31-1 March 2022 31· March 2021 

Work-in Progres 

Opening stock 2,489 2,945 

Closing stock 2,408 81 2,489 456 

Finished Goods 

Opening stock - -

Closing stock - -

Total Decrease I (Increase) 81 456 

NOTE 33 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES � in Lakhs 

Particulars For the yer ended For the yer ended 
31-1 March 2022 31· March 2021 

Salaries and al lowances 1 , 19 1  926 
Leave encashment 90 1 06 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 
Provident fund 93 85 
Superannuation fund 1 8  1 7  
Gratuity 53 61 
Other funds 4 1 68 4 1 67 
Administration and EDLI charges on PF 5 4 
Staff welfare expenses 28 20 
Total 1 ,482 1 ,223 

1 .  Salaries and allowances has an effect of reversal of Provison for PPI of � 1 2  Lakhs during the Current year. 

2. Salaries and allowances has an effect of reversal of Provison towards Pay Revision of � 239 Lakhs during the Previous year. 

NOTE 34 - FINANCE COSTS � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

As at 31R March 2022 As at 31M  March 2021 

Interest others - -

Interest on Short Term funding by BEL - 21  

Interest on  Loans from BEL 1 23 

Interest on Cash Credit - 1 

Interest on Income Tax 4 -

Interest levied on Delayed Payment of IGST & BCD - -

Sub-Total (1)  5 45 

Other borrowing cost 

Loan processing charges 1 7  28 

Sub-Total (2) 17  28 

Total (1+2) 22 73 

1 .  Interest Othersw.r.t. Previous year � 30, 145/- is rounded off. 
2.  Interest levied on delayed payment of IGST & BCD � 1 0,744/- wrt current year (Previous year � 574/-) is rounded off. 
3. The amount of interest capitalised on loan from BEL during the Year is � 1 Lakhs (Previous year � 54 Lakhs) which is not 

included above .Capitalisation Rate 7.56% p.a. (Previous year 8.01 %p.a.) 
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NOTE 38(1) - EARNING PER SHARE 

(a) The amount used as the numerator in calculating basic and diluted earning per share is the net profit after tax for the 
year disclosed in the statement of Profit and Loss. 

(b) The weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating both basic and di luted earnings 
per share is 84506970 Shares. 

� in Lakhs 

Earning Per Share 2021 -22 2020-21 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) from continuing Operation 0.61 0.58 

Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) from discontinuing Operation - . 

Amount used as the numerators in calculating basic & di luted 51 6 490 
earnings per share 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing basic and diluted 8,45,06,970 8,43,03,946 
earnings per share 

NOTE 38 (2)- DISCLOSURE RELATING TO CSR EXPENDITURE � in Lakhs 

Yet To be Paid In 
Appropriation 

CSR Grant Particulars In Cash Total For Unspent 
Cash Amount Total 

i .Construction / Acquisition on any asset - - - - -

- - - 69 69 

i i .Purpose other than (i) above - 1 9  1 9  - 1 9  

- - - - -

� in Lakhs 

Amount 
Total previous required to Amount of Shortfall as Reason for 

Nature of CSR activities shortfall* be spent on expenditure at shortfall 
CSR during incurred· 31 -03-2022 

the year 

1 .  Construction of 3 Classrooms & Staff 54 3 1 6  41 
Delay in obtaining Room at for School at Chandoli ,  Khed 

the requisite 
2. Construction of 2 additional Classrooms 1 0  1 0  - 20 approvals required 

for School at Chandoli ,  Khed 
before construction 

3. Providing furniture for above School 2 - - 2 of the school due 

4. Healthcare Project 6 6 
to pandemic 

- -

Total 66 19  1 6  69 

*Total previous shortfall includes amount of provision made in the year 201 8-1 9  � 1 6  Lakhs, 201 9-20 � 27 Lakhs and 2020-21 
�23 Lakhs towards cosntruction of 3 classrooms & staff room for School at Chandoli ,  Khed . 

• Amount of expenditure incurred during the year is spent out ofthe provision made during the year 201 8-19 .  
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NOTE NO. 39 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

(i) RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND POLICIES 

The Company is broadly exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates 
and price risk) as a result offinancial instruments. 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibil ity for the establishment, monitoring and supervision of the Company's 
risk management framework. For this purpose, the Board has set up a Risk Management Committee which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the risk management policies. The Company has an established Risk Management Policy 
that outlines risk management structure and provides a comprehensive frame work for identification, evaluation ,  
prioritization and treatment of various risks associated with different areas of financial and operations. 

(ii) MARKET RISK 

Market risk is the risk due to changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates that affect the 
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rate 
movements (refer to notes below on currency risk and interest risk). 

(iii) CURRENCY RISK 

BELOP is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions primarily relating to purchases and 
sales made in foreign currencies such as US Dollar (US D), Euro, SGD, CHF. Foreign exchange risk arises from existing 
and future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the 
Company's functional currency ( INR). 

The Company's Risk Management Committee reviews the Company's exposure to this risk on a regular basis. 

The Company's export proceeds which are realized in USD are received in an Export Earners Foreign Currency account 
(EEFC) which is then utilised for payments in USD foreign currency, thereby mitigating the currency risk on exports. 
In case of customer orders, the ERV clause is built-in the contract which el iminates the foreign currency fluctuation risk. 

The company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the financial year 2021 -22. As on 31 st March 2022, there 
are no outstanding derivative contracts. 

Company's exposure to currency risk is as follows: - � in Lakhs 

Particulars 
3101 March 2022 3101 March 2021 

Euro USD Euro USD 

Bank Balance - - - -

� - - - -

Bank Loans - Secured - - - -

� - - - -

Trade Payables 1 1 4 -

� 1 1 3  69 31 0 2 

Net Exposure i.r.o recognised 1 1 4 -

assets and liabilities 

� 1 13  69 31 0 2 

1 .  Trade Payable in USD 22,21 8  w.r.t. previous year is rounded off. 
2.  Net Exposure in USD 22,21 8  w.r.t. previous year is rounded off. 
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(iv) FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY 

A reasonably possible strengthening/(weakening) of the Indian Rupee against major currency Euro as at 31 sl March 2021 would 
have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected Profit or Loss and Equity 
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and 
ignores any impact offorecast sales and purchases. 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars Impact on Profit and Equity 
31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 

Currency Wise - Euro Rate I ncrease by 5% -5.64 -1 7.67 

Currency Wise -Euro Rate Decrease by 5% 5.64 1 7.67 

(v) INTEREST RATE RISK 

Interest rate risk can either be fairvalue interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fai rvalue interest rate risk is the risk 
of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow 
interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing instruments will fluctuate because of 
fluctuations in market interest rate. 

a) The company has been sanctioned Term loan for � 4 ,600/- Lakhs by BEL for execution of the XR-5 project. The 
interest is charged monthly at the rate of yield earned by BEL on the deposits made with banks upto previous month 
orthe interest rate of yield on a Government of India bond of five year tenure whichever is higher. 

b) BELOP has also been sanctioned fund based and non-fund based working capital limits of � 2,500 Lakhs by SBI .  
The rate of interest is 7. 1 0% p.a. The rate of interest charged by SBI is l inked to their base rate which is subject to 
fluctuations, as perthe terms and conditions. Outstanding as on 31st  March 2022 is NIL 

(vi) LIQUIDITY RISK 

Liqu idity Risk is the risk that a Company could encounter if it faces difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 
financial liabil ities by delivering cash and other financial asset or the risk that the Company will face difficulty in raising 
financial resources required to fulfill its commitments. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it has a 
prudent liquidity risk management process in place which ensures maintaining adequate cash to pay its liabilities when 
they are due. To ensure continuity of funding, the Company has access to short-term bank facilities in the nature of cash 
credit facility to fund its ongoing working capital requirements. 

The Company meets its liquidity requirement mainly through internally generated cash flows which is monitored by 
mapping expected cash inflows, to meet the liabilities. 

The tables below analyse the company's financial liabilities based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed 
are contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
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Note No. 39 -Financial Risk Management - Liquidity Risk (Point No. VI) 

(I) Maturities of Financial Liabilities: -

BELOP 

The table below reflects the all financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities. The 

amounts disclosed are gross and undiscounted cash flows. 

As at 3101 March 2022 

Sr. Contractual maturities Less than 3 3 months to 6 months 
No of financial liabilities months 6 months to 1 year 

I Borrowings - - -

I I  Current Maturities of Long - - -

Term Debt (Loan from BEL) 

I I I  Trade Payables 259 - -

IV Other Financial Liabilities:-

A Other Payable 4 - -

B Security Deposits 41  - -

C Outstanding Expenses 1 00 - -

D Interest On Borrowing - - -

E Interest On MSME - - -

Note:- Interest on MSME of � 22, 1 1 1 /- w.r.t. current year is rounded off. 

As at 3101 March 2021 

Sr. Contractual maturities Less than 3 3 months to 6 months 
No. of financial liabil ities months 6 months to 1 year 

I Borrowings - - -

Current Maturities of Long 378 - -

Term Debt (Loan from BEL) 

I I  Trade Payables 388 - -

I I I  Other Financial Liabilities:-

A Other Payable 1 33 - -

B Security Deposits 53 - -

C Outstanding Expenses 1 58 - -

D Interest On Borrowing 2 - -

E Interest On MSME - - -

Note:- Interest On MSME of � 22, 1 1 1 /- w.r.t. current year is rounded off. 
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� in Lakhs 
Between 1 Between 2 Total 

and 2 years and 5 years 

- - -

- - -

- - 259 

- - 4 

- - 41  

- - 1 00 

- - -

- - -

� in Lakhs 

Between 1 Between 2 
Total and 2 years and 5 years 

- - -

- - 378 

- - 388 

- - 1 33 

- - 53 

- - 1 58 

- - 2 

- - -
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CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 1055 to the 
Company. Credit risk arises from credit exposures from customers, cash and cash equivalent with banks, security deposits 
and loans. 

The credit risk of the Company is managed at a corporate level with directives ofthe risk management committee. 

Significant amount of trade receivables are due from Government / Government Departments, Public Sector Companies 
(PSUs) consequent to which the Company does not have a credit risk associated with such receivables. In case of non 
Government trade receivables, sales are generally carried out based on Letter of Credit established by the customer 
thereby reducing the credit risk. 

Advance payments are made in very special cases without bank guarantee after obtaining permission of the Board but the 
amount of advance payments is very minimal as compared to the total payments. Impairment losses on financial assets 
(representing mainly liquidated damages leviable for delayed deliveries and other disallowances) have been made after 
factoring contractual terms, etc. and other indicators to reflect expected credit 1055. 

The cash and cash equivalent with banks are in the form of short term deposits with maturity period of upto 1 year. The 
Company maintains it's short-term deposits with nationalised /scheduled commercial banks and it's consortium bankers 
only. The Company has not incurred any losses on account of default from banks on deposits. 

The credit risk in respect of other financial assets is negligible as they comprise of term deposits held with banks . 

(vii) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's Capital Management objective is to maintain a strong capital base and optimal capital structure to provide 
adequate returns to the shareholders and ensure the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The company 
has a conservative approach for raising capital through debt. In order to meet the requirements of XR-5 project, the 
company has raised funds by way of rights issue and by way of loan from 201 5-1 6  to 2020-21 . 

The Company plans to follow a Dividend Distribution Policy which proposes payments of dividend and retention of surplus 
for future growth and enhancing shareholders wealth . 

The company's borrowing as on 31st  March 2022 is outlined below:-

Sr. No. Particulars 
Amount Outstanding 

Remarks as on 3101 March 2022 
� in lakhs 

1 Term Loan from BEL(XR-5 Project) - Refer Note No. 22 of Balance Sheet. 

The Gearing Ratio is given below:- � in Lakhs 

Particulars As at 3101 March 2022 As at 3101 March 2021 

Net debt - 378 

Total equity 24,431 24,052 

Net debt to equity ratio - 0.02 
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Note No. 39 -Financial Risk Management (ix) 

Financial Instruments - Fair Value Measurements 

1 .  Accounting classification and fair values 

The following tables show the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities: 

a) Financial Assets 

31"1 March 2022 
Sr.No. Particulars Amortised FVPL FVOCI Cost 

Financial Assets measured at fair value - - -

Total - - -
Financial Assets not measured at fair value 

I Trade Receivables - - 97 

I I  Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,451 

I I I  Other Bank Balances - - 278 

IV Other Financial Assets 

A Term Deposit - - 1 05 

B Interest On Term Deposits - - 1 9  

C Security Deposit - - 36 

Total - - 3,986 

b) Financial Liabilities 

Sr.No. Particulars 3101 March 2022 

FVPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost 

Financial Liabilities measured at fair value - - -

Total - - -

Financial Liabilities not measured at fair value 
I Borrowings - - -

I I  Current Maturities of Long Term Debt {Loan from BEL - - -

I I I  Trade Payables - - 259 
IV Other Financial Liabilities 
A Other Payable - - 4 
B Security Deposits - - 41 
C Outstanding Expenses - - 1 00 
D Interest On Borrowing - - -

E Interest On MSME - - -
Total - - 404 

BELOP 

� in Lakhs 

31- March 2021 

FVPL FVOCI Am&rtised 
ost 

- - -

. . . 

- - 1 031 

- - 1 ,492 

- - 330 

- - 22 

. - 24 

- - 36 
- - 2,935 

� in Lakhs 

3101 March 2021 

FVPL FVOCI Amortised 
Cost 

- - -
- - -

- - -
- - 378 
- - 388 

- - 1 33 
- - 53 
- - 1 58 
- - 2 
- - -
- - 1 , 1 1 2  

Note:- Interest on MSME of � 22, 1 1 1 /- wrt current year is rounded off. (Previous Year � 22, 1 1 1 /-) 

75 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

GENERAL NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
NOTE NO. 40 

1 .  

I) 

a) 

b) 

BORROWINGS 

WORKING CAPITAL LOAN FROM BANKS 

The company has been sanctioned working capital limit of � 2,5001- Lakhs by SBI The rate of interest is 7. 1 0% p.a. 

The above sanctioned l imits are also secured by Hypothecation of raw materials, stock-in-process, finished stocks, stores 
and spares, book debts and other current assets (except spare parts relating to plant and machinery) by way of first charge 
as outlined below. The sanctioned limits are also secured by first pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on Land 
& Building. 

� in Lakhs 
Sr. No Particulars 31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 

ii) 

Inventories 3,430 3,639 
Trade Receivables 97 1 ,031 
Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,451 1 ,492 
Bank Balance 278 330 
Other FinancialAssets 22 29 
Other CurrentAssets 1 64 1 1 4  
Total Current Assets 7,442 6,635 

TERM LOAN FORXR-5 PROJECT FROM BEL 

BEL has sanctioned a Term Loan of � 4,6001- Lakhs to BELOP for XR-5 Project. After reschedulement, the principal 
payments are payable in 36 equal installments from August 201 9. The outstanding loan amount as on 31 .03.2022 is � Nill 
(Previous Year � 378/- Lakhs). The interest is charged monthly at the rate of yield earned by BEL on the deposits made with 
banks upto previous month or the interest rate of yield on a Government of India bond of five year tenure whichever is 
higher. 

2. DETAILS OF THE XR-5 PROJECT 

The XR-5 project was under implementation during the year. The License Fees paid is shown as intangible assets under 
development. The technical assistance rendered under the project during the year has been charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

3. FUNDING OF THE XR-5 PROJECT 

In order to enhance the specifications of the 1 . 1 .  Tubes to meet the customer requirements, BELOP has entered into an 
Agreement with MIs Photonis, France for ToT for XR-5 1 . 1 .  Tubes during May 2014 .  BEL has committed to fund the basic 
project cost of Euro 22.95 Mil l ion by way of infusion of equity and the balance amount of the project cost amounting to 
approx. � 4,6001- Lakhs towards related taxes and duties and towards infrastructure upgradation at BELOP by way of 
loan. 

4. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for � 1 /- Lakhs 
(Previous Year � 3/- Lakhs). 

5. DETAILS OF GRANT TRANSFER IN RESPECT OF TOT (XD-4) 

Sr. No Particulars 

1 Depreciation 

2 Amortization of License Fee 

3 Total 
4 % of Grant Transfer 

5 Grant Transfer (3*4) 

� in Lakhs 

2021 -22 2020-21 
520 520 

1 ,250 1 ,250 

1 ,770 1 ,770 
74.30% 74.30% 

1 ,31 5 1 ,315 

BELOP has entered into an Agreement with MIs Photon is ,  France for transfer of technology for manufacture of Higher 
Specification 1 . 1  Tubes at BELOP which is funded by way of Grant. The percentage of grant to ToT Cost is 74.30% of the expenses 
incurred in the year 2021 -22 towards ToT has been transferred to income in the Statement of Profit and Loss & corresponding 
expenses is debited to Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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6. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS (NET OF GST) � in Lakhs 

Sr. No Particulars 2021 -22 2020-21 

1 Statutory Audit Fees 1 .50 1 .50 

Total 1 .50 1 .50 

7. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES: 

A) Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists: 

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship 

Bharat Electronics LimitedHolding Company Holding Company 

B) Related Party Transactions with holding Company Bharat Electronic Limited � in Lakhs 

Nature of Transactions Amount of Amount of Amount Outstanding Amount Outstanding 
Transactions Transactions at the end of year at the end of year 

2021 -22 2020-21 31 .03.2022 31 .03.2021 
(�) (�) Debit (�) Credit (�) Debit (�) Credit (�) 

Sales 1 325 1 1 83 - - - -

Purchases - - - - - -

Interest Paid 3 98 - - - -

Internal Audit Fees 1 1 - 1 - 1 

Equity Contribution (Including - 1 57 - 1 7,422 - 1 7,422 

Securities Premium) 

Dividend Paid 1 47 91 - - - -

Trade Receivables** - - 1 76 - 1 87 -

Term Loan From BEL - - - - - 378 

I nterest on Term Loan from BEL - - - - - 2 

** Debtors includes � 1 40/- Lakhs (Previous Year � 1 40/- Lakhs) for which provision for doubtful debts has been made. 

BELOP has entered in to an agreement with BEL on 30th April 201 3  for temporary funding of TOT cost by BEL for 
� 1 04. 1 6/- Lakhs and as per the terms of the agreement BELOP is required to compensate BEL for the cost of 
Funds . .  Since BEL has received funds from MOD during 2020-2 1 ,  there is no interest charged by BEL during the 
year2021 -22. 

ii Two Officials are on deputation from, BEL i.e. Holding Company and salaries etc. is paid by the BEL Optronic 
Devices Limited during the year as per the terms and conditions of employment. 

Transaction with Government and Government Related Entities :-

As BELOP is a government entity under the control of Ministry of Defence (MoD) and has availed exemption from detailed 
disclosures required under IND-AS 24 with respect to related party transactions with government and government related 
entities. An amount of � 61/- Lakhs (previous year � 1 002/- Lakhs) is outstanding as Trade Receivables as on 31 .03.2022. 

C) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

Sr.No Name of Key Management Personnel Designation 

1 Mr. M.v. Gowtama (upto 30.06.2021 ) CMD, BEL and Chairman, BELOP 
2 Mrs.Anandi Ramalingam(Chairman from 01 .07.2021 )  CMD, BELand Chairman, BELOP 
3 Mr. M .  V. Rajasekhar (from 30.07.2021 ) Director (R & D), BEL & Director, BELOP 
4 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Batra Director (Finance), BEL& Director, BELOP 
5 Mr. Shivakumaran K M (upto 31 .08.2021 ) Director (HR), BEL & Director, BELOP 
6 Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao Chief Executive Officer, BELOP 
7 Mr. P. Sarkar Chief Financial Officer, BELOP 
8 Ms. Priya S. Iyer Company Secretary & DGM(MS), BELOP 
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The above five Directors are Part time directors and no remuneration has been paid by the company to them during this year. The 
remuneration paid to CEO, BELOP, CFO and to the Company Secretary, BELOP is given below:-

� in Lakhs 
Sr.No. Particulars Short-term benefits Retirement Benefits Total 

2021 -22 2020-21 2021 -22 2020-21 2021 -22 2020-21 

1 Mr. DCN Srinivasa Rao 40 44 9 8 49 52 

2 Mr. P. Sarkar 34 25* 7 6* 41 31 * 

3 Ms. Priya S. Iyer 1 7  22 4 3 21  25 

*w.e.f. 26.06.2020 

8. As per the IND-AS Accounting Standard - 1 08 on "Operating Segments" Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification no. 
463 (E) dated 5th June, 201 5 as amended has exempted the Companies engaged in Defence Productions from the 
requirement of Segment Reporting. 

9. The company which is a single composite cash generating unit has on the basis of assessment of internal and external 
factors found that there are no indications of impairment of its assets and hence no provision for the same is considered 
necessary. 

1 0. The company has incurred an expenditure on Research and Development during the year which are in the respective 
natural Classification is given below: 

� in Lakhs 
Particulars 2021 -22 2020-21 

Material 1 2 
Capital Expenditure - -

Employee Remuneration & Benefits 1 3  1 0  
Gross Expenditure 14  12 

11 .  A new superannuation Scheme for it's executives with effect from 01 .04.2017  has been approved by the Board and 
has been submitted to Income Tax Department for its Approval . .  

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Sr. 
No. Particulars 

a) Outstanding Letters of Credit 
b) Outstanding Bank Guarantees (Counter Guarantee given against same 

by Company) 

c) Octroi Demand disputed by the Company and deposited with 
Sr. Divisional Bench of Pune Court in the financial year 2005-06. 
Presently the case is pending with Small Causes Court, Pune. 

d) Service tax disputed by the company 

e) Provisional Liquidated damages upto 31st March unexecuted customer 
orders where the delivery date has expired. 

Total ( a to e ) 

13. Value of Remaining Performance Obligation (Pending Orders to be executed) 

� in Lakhs 

For the year 
ended 31 .03.2022 

For the l::.ear 
ended 31 . 3.2021 

(�) (�) 

34 -

1 89 1 74 

14  14  

1 98 1 98 
Ni l Ni l  

435 386 

Unrecognised revenue from contracts with Customer which are partially satisfied or unsatisfied (Pending Orders to be 
executed) 

� in Lakhs 

Particulars Total Within 2-3 Years 1 -2 Years More than 
Amount a Year 3 years 

Unexecuted OrderValue 1 ,772 1 ,772 - - -

Total 1 ,772 1 ,772 - - -
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14. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any Benami property. 

15. The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off 

16. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

17. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

1 8. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shal l :  

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 

or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the l ike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

19. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :  

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 

or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the l ike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

20. The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1 961 such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions ofthe Income Tax Act, 1 961 

21 . Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified where ever considered necessary. Figure in brackets relate to 
previous year. 

22. All the figures in the Financial Statement are rounded off to nearest lakhs unless otherwise mentioned. 
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STATEMENT OF ANALYTICAL RATIOS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022 

Explanation Current Year Previous Year 
Sr. Ratio 

Current Previous % age Reason for 
No. Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator Period Period Changes Changes 

(� in Lakhs) (� in Lakhs) (� in Lakhs) (� in Lakhs) 

1 Current ratio Current Asset Current Liabil ities 7,442 3,026 6,853 3,469 2.46 1 .98 24.26 NA 

2 Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 1 2,383 24,432 1 3,970 24,052 0.51 0.58 (1 2.06) NA 

3 Debt service Earning Debt Service 2,517  381 2,534 1 ,331 6.61 1 .90 247.89 Due to 
coverage ratio available for repayment 

debt service of all Loans 

4 Return on equity Net Profit after Average 516  24,242 490 23,790 0.02 0.02 - NA 
ratio taxes Shareholder Equity 

5 Inventory turnover Sales Average Inventory 4,371 3, 1 85 4,032 3,579 1 .37 1 . 1 3  21 .22 N.A 
ratio 

6 Trade receivables Net Credit Average Accounts 5,401 564 4,781 552 9.58 8.66 1 0.62 NA 
turnover ratio Sales Receivable 

7 Trade payables Net Credit Average Trade 1 ,4 13  393 1 ,328 657 3.60 2.02 78.22 Due to 
turnover ratio Purchases Payables increase in 

Payment to 
Trade Creditors 

8 Net capital Net Sales Working Capital 4,586 4,41 5 4,075 3,384 1 .04 1 .20 (1 3.35) NA 
turnover ratio 

9 Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 516  4,586 490 4,075 0. 1 1  0. 1 2  (8.33) NA 

10 Return on  capital Earning before Capital Employed 774 24,576 757 24,466 0.03 0.03 - NA 
employed (ROCE) Interest & taxes 

1 1  Return on 
investment Since Company is an unl isted entity, hence Return on Investment can not be computed 

Since the change in the Ratio is not more than 25% as compare to preceding year further explanation is not required. Hence, it is Not Applicable. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Bel Optronic Devices Limited 

Report on the Audit ofthe Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Bel Optronic Devices Limited ("the Company"), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at March 31 , 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS 
financial statements give a true and fairview in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the 
Ind AS, ofthe state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2022 and its profit and loss, Changes in Equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 1 43(1 0) of the Companies 
Act, 201 3. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit ofthe Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3  and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibil ities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibil ity is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 1 34(5) of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 1 33 oftheAct. This responsibil ity also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and 
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a 
true and fairview and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abil ity to continue as a going 
concern , disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities forthe Audit of Financial Statement 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone I nd AS financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone I nd AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve col lusion , forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 201 3, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern . If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit ofthe Standalone Ind AS financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1 .  As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order" ), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (1 1 )  of section 1 43 of the Companies Act, 201 3, we give in the "Annexure A", a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

82 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

2. As required by Section 1 43(3) of the Act, we report that : 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes ofouraudit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books 

(c) The company does not have any branches and hence branchAudit is not applicable. 

(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 1 33 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 .  

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2022 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 1 64(2) oftheAct. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 8". 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 1 97(1 6) oftheAct, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and also disclosed 
under Note No 40(7)(C), the company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the financial year. 

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

iv) 

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on tis financial position in the Standalone Ind 
AS financial statements - Refer Note 40(1 2) to the financial statements 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the question of 
commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise 

i i i) The provisions related to the said clause relating to transfer of amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
investor education and protection fund by the company are not applicable to the company 

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security orthe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall ,  whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the l ike on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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v} 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 1  (e), as provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

(a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the company during the year is in 
accordance with Section 1 23 of the Act, as applicable (As declared in note no 1 7  to the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements) 

(b) The Board of Directors of the company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the 
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend is in accordance 
with Section 1 23 oftheAct, as applicable 

3. As required by Section 143(5} of the Act, we have considered the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
of India, the action taken thereon and its impact on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company in 
"Annexure C". 

For PRASS & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

sd/-
CA Ajinkya. J. Ranadive 
Partner 
M.No. 1 48962 
Date : 1 9th May 2022 
Place : Pune 
UDIN : 221 48962AJGKRU21 20 

84 



Annual Report 2021 - 22 BELOP 

Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date to the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31 , 2022: 

1 )  

2)  

a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets; 

b) The company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are verified in a 
phased manner over a period ofthree years. 

c) In accordance with this program certain fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year 
and no material discrepancies between the records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. In our opinion , 
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the company and the nature of its 
assets. 

d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name ofthe company. 

e) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
Assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

f) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31 , 2022 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1 988 (as amended in 201 6) and rules 
made thereunder. 

a) The inventory has been physically verified at the year-end by the management and no material discrepancies were 
noticed between books of accounts and physical verification. 

b) The company has availed Cash credit l imits of Rs. 25 crores (as on 31st March 2022). However, the same is not yet 
util ised by the company. The limit so availed is on the basis of projected cash flow. As informed to us, the company does 
not have to submit any statements other than projected cash flows. 

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other 
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 1 89 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ii i )  of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon . 

4) The company has not given any loans, investment and guarantees, to a person specified under the provisions of section 
1 85 and 1 86 ofthe Companies Act, 201 3. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 201 5 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1 ) of section 1 48 of the 
Companies Act, 201 3 according to its turnover and the same has been maintained by the company. 
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7) 
(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, and 

records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts 
payable in respect ofthe above were in arrears as at March 31 , 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date 
on when they become payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute 
except service tax as specified in the table below: 

According to information and explanation given to us, the following dues have not been deposited by the company on 
account of dispute: 

Sr. No Nature of Dues Forum where dispute is pending Financial Year 31at March, 2022 

1 .  Service Tax CESTAT 201 4-1 5  1 2,62,327.00 

2. Service Tax CESTAT 201 6-1 7  1 ,69, 1 8,951 .00 

3. Service Tax CESTAT 201 5-1 6  1 5,83,1 23.00 

8) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1 961 (43 of 1 961 ). 

9) 

1 0) 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations g iven to us, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of loans and borrowings from financial institutions, banks, government or dues to the debenture holders. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) ofthe Order is not 
applicable. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on shortterm basis have, prima 
facie, not been used during the yearfor long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of orto meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) ofthe Order is not applicable. 
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1 1 )  
(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, we 

report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 
under rule 1 3  of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto 
the date of this report. 

(c) As per explanation and information provided to us, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the 
year. 

1 2) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

1 3) In our opinion and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records of the company, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with section 1 77 and 1 88 of Companies Act, 201 3 where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14) 
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 

business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till 
date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

1 5) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, the company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3 (xv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

1 6) 
(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IAofthe Reserve Bank of lndiaAct, 1 934. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) ofthe Order is not applicable 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 201 6) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) ofthe Order is not applicable. 

1 7) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

1 8) There has been no resignation ofthe statutory auditors ofthe Company during the year. 

1 9) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fal l  due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabil ity of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabil ities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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20) 
(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibil ity (CSR) on other than ongoing projects 

requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VI I  to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to 
sub-section (5) of Section 1 35 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable for the year 

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount 
as at the end of the previous financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said 
financial year in compliance with the provision of section 1 35(6) of the Act. 

For and on behalf of 
Mis PRASS & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

sd/-
CA Ajinkya. J .  Ranadive 
Partner 
M.No. 1 48962 
Date: 1 9th May 2022 
Place: Pune 
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013  
("The Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting of BEL OPTRONIC DEVICES LIMITED ("the 
Company") as of 31 st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with reference to financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 201 3. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibil ity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the" Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(1 0) ofthe Companies Act, 201 3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operate defectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Acompany's internal financial control with reference to financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliabil ity offinancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that ( 1 )  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail ,  accurately and fai rly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting, including the possibil ity of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion , the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For and on behalf of 
Mis PRASS & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

sd/-
CA Ajinkya. J. Ranadive 
Partner 
M.No. 1 48962 
Date: 1 9th May 2022 
Place: Pune 
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Response to the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor - General of India under Sec 143(5} of the Companies Act, 
2013 .  

Based on  Management response and our review of accounts, we submit the following: 

Sr. No. 

1 .  

2.  

3. 

Directions 

Whether the company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through IT 
system? If yes, the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside IT system on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated. 

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
l o a n  o r  c a s e s  o f  w a i v e r/w r i te off o f  
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the 
company due to the company's inabil ity to repay the 
loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In 
case, lender is a Government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for statutory auditor of 
lender company). 

Whether funds (grants / subsidy etc.) received/ 
receivable for specific schemes from Central/State 
Government or its agencies were properly 
accounted for/util ized as per its term and 
conditions? List the cases of deviation. 

For and on behalf of 
Mis PRASS & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

sd/-
CA Ajinkya. J .  Ranadive 
Partner 
M.No. 148962 
Date: 1 9th May 2022 
Place: Pune 
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Response 

The company has system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions through IT system. There 
are no accounting transactions that are processed 
outside the IT system, so the question of any 
financial implication does not arise. 

Based on our review of books of accounts and 
management confirmation there are no such cases 
of any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest etc. made by 
a lenderto the company. 

Based on our review of books of accounts, the 
company has not received any funds from the 
central/state agencies during the year under review. 



Am .... REF .z121l21 - 22 

,,, 

n,' �r«" r,,,,, 
c""'l.,,,,i,z 

""'" � .. li ..... .... "'" l!" � ""'" 
�'" ""., m... . ...,. - !60 1)(1\ 
0"'" Of' ",. PU<C,.., """'<:TOO Of' COY�'RCI'" 

>UO<T .... ,,_.� IIIWK", ACODIT OOA"" • 

.. """'-""" _ ... OZ1, 

�'DAT'_ 

_\1" �"",", R.,,.hn",",, 
(hajJ""",, 
lin Of<t,,"i< [)""i", limit<d. 
""",,_." "'0, 

Si" 
>ub CO/Ull,ntl of the C("'I"",I" ",,<I A .... � (",,",,'iii. oj' lnoli> under ""fiooo. 

14)10) IOJ '" ,I>< COOlponi" "co. 1(11) "" !t.. r"'",c,.1 S[,...,..,,,,, of 
IIEL o,.m,,", De,k" limit«!. I'"", foo- .... " ..  ",od<J 
11 M""h �n. 

""".ru No! C ...... " Cortilit", of w; C".,.,,'1e. .nd AuoIiLot G""",," 01' 1000i. ,",ocr 
"-,,,;.., 1.:;"6) iO) of Lt.< Componi<r ,\(;t, :013 "" tb< n",,,,·i.,l ,""""""", of IlEL o,.ro.'" 
Dc"' .. , 1,;"';"". Pu_ .'" , ... y .... ........, J 1 """'h ,<"'-,, 

It "")' 1"0''''' "" C",,,,«I <hot .... wm""'� .n, 

lil j�i"'''' in """ .. ito.,.. "'I «l [i'f; 

iii) 1'1",,� bc!'oro It.: AOM '" """';,,,,1 """"" S« [io, 1411 0) It) "rlhc 
�,\<L2()I\ CN>o:I 

,;;i) P1",«l '"'" to LI", " .... "') ,\oM;'o,'- ",."m '" the A """"I R,I'o"" r 
It.: COIn l"")' .. i" I'" 'l"" "xldi", '" "'" .00.<, 

Tht r=1r< of to" l...,,,, ''')' 1"«'" � "" "" "Je.4l..J 

"",,,I, , •• ,"",,,,c_ 

- ....... .., .... iOo1o 
_"""" &",eoum "''''''MlNT 

)\=t1Il�'. 

,J � " ,,,,mol) 
D,,_ 0;,,,,,,,, (MmillJ 

- "", __ , ......... ... ..., _ ,.., ""L 

", """, _. __ .. . w" "'_, _ _ >00 "" 



COMMENTS or THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL or INDIA 
1<0 (b) or THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE 

OF MIS. BEL OPTRONIC DEVICES LIMITED, PUNE 
MARCH 2ell 

The ])It,_notion of financial -.nenl!l of BEL OpIIOIIk Devktf U.Ited, hlle for the 

year ended 31 March 2022 in IIIXQf\Iancc wilh the financial ,eporting framewort< prncribed 

under the CompIIIiH AC1, 2(113 (ACI) is the responsibility of the managtmml of the 

tomPllllY. The statutory lUdilOr appointed by the ComplJ'OlJcr and Aooitor Genu al of India 

under SCCIion 1J9(5) of the Act il re�ible for tlCpress;ng opinion on the financial 

_.II"'IU under !lCCtion 143 of the Act bBstd on independent lUdil in acoordance "'th the 

standards on auditing prncribed WIder SCCIion 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been 

doni: by them vide their Aooit Rtpondated 19 May 2022. 

1. on behalf nf the Complroller and Aooitor Ge"",a! of India. have ronducted a 

suppitll"ntary aOOiI ofo.. filllncial statemmts of BEL Optl'l/llie Devica LiIIIiled, P .. e for 

the year ended 31 March lOll under section 143(6) (a) of the ACI. This suppkllle"tary Booit 
, 

hu been <:arried 0\11 independc:ntly without """CO' to the wort<ing papers of the _utory 

auditor and is limited primarily to inquirieo of the !tatutory aooilOr and CUllPIIIlY personnel 

and a ""lccti"" examination of some of the aocounung records. 

On the basi. of my supplemental')' aooil, nothing signiflCalll ..... rome to my 1mo .. 'ledgc 

which would give ri ... 10 Illy comment upon or supplement ID ututory looiton' report under 

_lion 143(6Xb) of the Act. 

PllICe: Bengal ...... 

Dale: 04 July 2(122 

.. 

For and 011 bebalfo1lk 
ComplrollrrA Ai�enl or India 

(S • ..,..., Ie ••• r) 
Pro Di_lOr of C .... ereial AIKIII 
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Train ing Programme cond ucted by MIs Technocom Avia ,  Russia to BELOP officials as part of the Offset Project 
for manufacture of Aviation Hoses with MIs Rosoboronexport, Russia d u ring 25'" April 2022 to 5'" May 2022. 

M r. DCN Srinivasa Rao, CEO, BELOP (seventh from right) ,  Mr. Kolesnikov Vita l i i ,  Fi rst Deputy General Director, 
Technocom Avia (eighth from right), Mr. Denis A. S hchegol kov, Sen ior expert, Offset Division, Rosoboronexport 

(seventh from left), Ms. Bogdanova Ca rina, Ch ief Commercia l Officer, Tech nocom Avia (sixth from left), 
Mr. Novikov Vladimir, Ch ief Engineer, Tech nocom Avia (fifth from left), Mr. Ani !  Dixit, Sr. DGM(P & S), BELOP, 

(second from left) and other officia ls from BELOP. 

Business review workshop co nducted on 4V\ March 2022. 

M r. DCN Srinivasa Rao ,  CEO, BELOP. centre left with BELOP executives. 
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BEL OPTRON IC DEVICES LIMITED 
Govt. of I nd ia Enterprise M in istry of Defence 
A subsidary of Bharat E lectron ics Lim ited (BEL) 
C.  I .  N .  U 32 1  00PN 1 990G0 1  058096 
Regd . & Head Office : EL . -30 ,  'J' Block, 
Bhosari I ndustria l  Area ,  Pu ne - 4 1 1  026 ( I nd ia)  
Phone : (020)  27 1 3098 1 (4 Li nes) ,  
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